

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY MARCH 6, 2019                                                                                            EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 6, 2019 - Page 1 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 6:00 p.m. 


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda 


   


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 


Information for possible action 


2.2. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint (Govt. 
Code Section 54957) 


Information for possible action 


2.3. Conference With Legal Counsel Anticipated 
Litigation (Govt. Code Section 54956.9): Specify 
facts that lead to exposure to litigation 


Number of Cases: 1 


Case: California Voting Rights Act – Trustee Area Elections 


   


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance  


3.2 Agenda changes, additions or deletions  


   


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 


   


5. Superintendent's/Students’ Reports  


5.1. Superintendent's Report  


5.2. Students’ Reports  


   


1/376







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY MARCH 6, 2019                                                                                            EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 6, 2019 - Page 2 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


6. Board Members' Reports  


6.1. Board Members' Reports  


6.2. Board President's Report  


   


7. Approval of Minutes  


7.1. Minutes February 6, 2019   


   


8. General Public Business  


   


8.1. Consent Agenda Non-Contract Items: These 
matters may be passed by one roll call 
motion.  


 


8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated  


8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified  


8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Bids & Quotes  


8.1.4. Warrant Register  


8.1.5. Disposition of Surplus Property  


8.1.6. Board Meeting Schedule 2019-20  


   


8.2. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


 


8.2.1. Human Resources/District Office: New Classified 
Job Description: Office Assistant 


 


8.2.2. Human Resources/Special Education: 
Certificated Job Description: Compliance Coach 


 


8.2.3. Human Resources: New Certificated Job 
Description: International Baccalaureate 
Coordinator 


 


8.2.4. Educational Services/Costanoa High School: 
Overnight Field Trip 


 


2/376







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY MARCH 6, 2019                                                                                            EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 6, 2019 - Page 3 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.2.5. Educational Services/Soquel High School: 
Consultant Services Agreement – National 
Coalition Building Institute Equity Workshop 


 


8.2.6. Educational Services/Soquel High School: 
Overnight Field Trip 


 


8.2.7. Educational Services/Curriculum: Consultant 
Services Agreement – American Council on the 
Teaching of Foreign Language 


 


8.2.8. Educational Services: 5-Year Tech Plan  


8.2.9. Business Services: Consultant Services 
Agreement – Sherrie Lust 


 


8.2.10. Business Services/Soquel High School: Mobile 
Home Security Agreement 


 


8.2.11. Business Services: School Services of California 
Proposal for Budget Review 


 


   


8.3 Consent Agenda: Bond Projects Contracts, 
Agreements, Proposals, Bids & Change 
Orders 


 


8.3.1. CRW Industries, Inc.: Change Order #1: Natural 
Bridges Modernization & Repairs - Lighting 
Retrofit 


 


8.3.2. Montano Plumbing: Proposal and Contract: 
Mission Hill Utility Infrastructure 


 


8.3.3. Swinerton: Lease-Lease Back Agreement 
Amendment: Soquel High School Modernization 
Phase 1 


 


8.3.4. XL Construction: Proposal and Contract: Harbor 
High School Weight Room Abatement 


 


 
 


 


8.4. Report of Closed Session Actions  


8.4.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


   


8.5. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  


8.5.1. Educational Services  


3/376







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY MARCH 6, 2019                                                                                            EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 6, 2019 - Page 4 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.5.1.1. Staff Report: Local Control Accountability Plan 
Foster Youth Update 


 


   


8.5.2. Business Services  


8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Second Interim Report 
 


8.5.2.2. Staff Report: Bond Budget Update  


8.5.2.3. PUBLIC HEARING: AB 1200 Public Disclosure 
of Costs for Tentative Agreement with GSCFT for 
2018-19 


 


8.5.2.4. New Business: AB 1200 Public Disclosure of 
Costs for Tentative Agreement with GSCFT for 
2018-19 


 


8.5.2.5. New Business: XL Construction: Amendment 1: 
Soquel and Harbor High School Pool Projects 


 


8.5.2.6. Lease Purchase: Creative Bus Sales and Bus 
West 


 


   


8.5.3. Human Resources  


8.5.3.1. 
New Business: Resolution 18-18-19: Non 
Re-election of Certain Probationary Employees 


 


8.5.3.2. New Business: Resolution 23-18-19: Reduction 
of K12 Particular Kinds of Services 


 


8.5.3.3. New Business: SCCCE Sunshine Articles for 
SCCS 2018-19 


 


8.5.3.4. New Business: SCCS Sunshine Articles for 
SCCCE 2018-19 


 


   


8.5.4. Governance/Superintendent  


8.5.4.1. PUBLIC HEARING: State Board of Education 
Waiver 


 


8.5.4.2. New Business: Resolution 24-18-19: Apply for 
State Board of Education Waiver 


 


4/376







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY MARCH 6, 2019                                                                                            EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 6, 2019 - Page 5 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.5.4.3. Discussion: Possible Items for Future Meeting 
Agendas 


 


 
 


 


9. Adjournment  


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


11. 
Closed Session Action Report (if necessary)  


12. Adjournment 
 


  
 


 


The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html or may be viewed at the District 
Office, Superintendent’s Office, 133 Mission St. Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95006.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as 
any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open 
session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in 
closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Sarah Miller by 
telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por favor 
haga arreglos por anticipado con Sarah Miller por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on March 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on March 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting on April 17, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Governance Session on April 24, 2019, 6:00p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library,  
300 La Fonda Ave., Santa Cruz, CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting on May 15, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5/376







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY MARCH 6, 2019                                                                                            EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 6, 2019 - Page 6 of 6 


6. The Regular Meeting on May 29, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting on June 12, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on June 19, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6/376







 


 


    
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING  


OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


February 6, 2019 
 
 
 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:33 p.m. in the Board Room of 
the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
A teacher from Santa Cruz High School spoke about a leave of absence request she submitted to the District 
for approval. In an effort to be fully transparent, the speaker disclosed that her choice to take leave is based 
on the desire to provide child rearing to her daughter. She also stated that if the leave is granted, she plans to 
spend part of the time in Costa Rica. The speaker also noted that she is a 0.5 FTE employee, and the school 
would not need to hire a replacement in her absence. 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:33 p.m. in the County 
Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Jeremy Shonick Deanne Perez-Granados 
Patty Threet  Deb Tracy-Proulx Claudia Vestal   Cynthia Ranii 
 
Absent: Student Board Representative Christin Perez, Costanoa HS  
Absent: Student Representative Josh Selvartnam, Soquel High School  
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Tracy-Proulx welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular 
Meeting of the Board of Education. 
 
Agenda Changes 
Item 8.1.7. Educational Services/Santa Cruz High School: PE Waiver - removed. 
Item 8.2.2. Educational Services/Special Education: Agreement for Professional Services Deborah Bell – 
Revised cover sheet: Fiscal Impact changed from “Not to exceed $2300.00” to “Not to exceed $2250.00” due 
to 15 hours at $150/hour equals $2250.00. 
8.2.5. Educational Services/Soquel High School: Overnight Field Trip – Addition to supporting documents: 
Itinerary and list of scheduled events. 


7/376







 


 


Item 8.2.7. Educational Services/Santa Cruz High School: Consultant Services Agreement Planned Parenthood - 
Revised cover sheet: Fiscal Impact changed from $280.00 to $240.00 per contract.    
Item 8.5.1.1. Elementary ELA Task Force Update – Revised cover sheet: Number sequence was missing the 
number 1; academic year 2019-20 was written incorrectly as “2019-10”. 
Consent Agenda was moved to follow Items to be Transacted or Discussed. The following items we rearranged 
to be presented in this order: 
1) 8.5.4.1. Public Hearing: Potential Composition of Trustee Areas Prior to Drawing of Maps 
2) 8.5.4.2. Settlement Agreement and General Release of Claims related to California Voting Rights Act 
3) 8.5.2.1. Bond Oversight Committee Annual Report 


 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 


   
None 


SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
Superintendent’s Report 
 
Superintendent Munro reported that GLAD demonstration lessons on integrated ELD took place on 01/17, 
01/22, and 01/23 at Harbor High for secondary teachers, which were a follow up from a training over summer. 
Teachers who participated were able to observe trainers demonstrate lessons with students. The 
Superintendent also informed the Board about the second MTSS Retreat that took place on 02/05 at UCSC’s 
Seymour Marine Center. She commended the Educational Services team for a very successful day that created 
opportunities for meaningful engagement for participants. Following the MTSS retreat, principals and central 
office leaders met to review site input and implications for shifts in LCAP. Superintendent Munro participated 
in Probationary 2 Roundtables with site administrators on 01/28 and 02/04, and reviewed each site’s 
summative evaluations of probationary 2 teachers. They discussed data, successes, new evaluation tools, and 
made recommendations to move forward. The Superintendent attended the Superintendent Symposium the 
previous week, and thanked the Board for supporting her ongoing learning. She noted inspiring keynotes, and 
the opportunity to collaborate with colleagues. Assistant Superintendent Coito met with GSCFT 
representatives to solicit input on the LCAP, and appreciated the opportunity to meet and speak with building 
representatives. The Superintendent continues to work on SECA Operations Council for SELPA, and is currently 
reviewing AB602 funding changes made two years ago to try to create a more equitable and fair funding 
model, noting that we are the largest district in SELPA. Furthermore, as data is monitored, it appears that 
percentages are staying consistent and working at this point. Assistant Superintendent Gaffney has been 
conducting ongoing budget meetings with sites and departments during the transition to Escape. The 
Superintendent shared gratitude for Board member Shonick and Board President Tracy-Proulx, who attended 
the Board Community Meeting with the PAC and DELAC committees this month. Finally, Superintendent 
Munro attended the most recent GOAL Board meeting, and shared two significant data outcomes: last year, 
358 adult education students entered employment, and 154 experienced wage gain. She concluded that there 
is currently a process to develop a new three-year Adult Education plan.  
 


STUDENT BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
 
Student Board Member Report 
None 
 


 
 


8/376







 


 


BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
Board Members’ Reports 
Board Member Vestal attended a Governance Budget Perspectives workshop that she felt was worth 
watching, and that the Governance team will have many things to consider when reviewing budgets in the 
future. Board Member Vestal also shared that Gault Librarian Barbara Lawrence wrote a grant for a mobile 
planetarium to come to the school for first and fifth grade students. The first graders watched the sunset, the 
night sky, and changes in the moon, while fifth graders learned about the solar system, the orbit of the Earth, 
and the rotation of the Earth’s axis. Teachers and students both loved the experience, and a fifth grade 
student reported: “That was the coolest thing I ever saw!” Board Member Vestal would like to see this 
program used at other sites, and shared that the grant is $800 for two days of onsite learning.  
 


Board Member Shonick reported on the death of Deborah Calhoun, and made a hopeful suggestion that SCCS 
make a kind gesture of acknowledgment to her family. Ms. Calhoun and her husband were parents to four 
daughters, all of whom are excellent swimmers and attended schools within SCCS. Board Member Shonick 
noted that a memorial service would be held on Friday February 8th at the Cowell Hay Barn at UCSC.   
 


Board Member Threet attended the Governor’s Budget Perspective Workshop, and thanked the Capital 
Advisors and the COE for providing this resource. She benefited from the overview and from learning about 
the political insight. Board Member Threet also had the opportunity to visit alternative education campuses 
within Santa Cruz County. She visited Sequoia High School in Watsonville, which serves high need, Spanish 
speaking students, and has a majority population of Latino students. She also visited Ponderosa High school in 
SLV, and noted that students are currently building a tiny house to bid off, and felt it was nice to see students 
working with their hands and enjoying it. Another campus visited was Oasis High School, which services many 
students in the SCCS community. She concluded that these alternative education programs are vibrant and 
serving our community. Board Member Threet attended a Soquel and Santa Cruz High basketball game, where 
she caught the last of the girls’ basketball teams, and the entirety of the boys’ games. She noted that there 
was a rivalry, the band played in full force, and even saw Student Representative Selvartham. It was also 
Parent’s Night for the seniors’ parents. During the game, the cheerleaders were recognized, and she was 
pleased to learn that there are thirty-five cheerleaders at Soquel. She reported there is a possibility of play off 
on Saturday at the Cabrillo campus after Delta’s 25th Anniversary. Board Member Threet would also like to 
acknowledge the work of Debbie Calhoun, who was one of the driving forces in making sure the SCHS pool 
came to fruition, while the state was under a different funding model. Lastly, Board Member Threet relayed an 
invitation for all to dine at the Shadowbrook restaurant on February 12, where proceeds will go to the Live 
Oak Education Foundation and the community soccer complex, which will serve the Santa Cruz community. 
She thanked the Live Oak Education Foundation for creating the opportunity to build the much-needed 
facility. 
 
Board President’s Report 
Board President Tracy-Proulx reported that she attended the Governor's Budget Workshop hosted by Capital  
Advisors, and gave thanks the County Office of Education for sponsoring and hosting this very informative 
event. President Tracy-Proulx also attended a community meeting at Branciforte Small Schools that coincided 
with the DELAC meeting, and was very impressed and appreciative for the high level of parent participation. 
She is looking forward to celebrating Delta High School's 25-year anniversary this weekend. President Tracy-
Proulx also thanks Harbor High’s AD Hollis O'Brien and swim coach Jake Soares for arranging transportation for 
swimmers to the different pools that will be used for practice this season while HHS pool is out of commission. 
Their efforts will ensure that all athletes will be able to participate. 
 


9/376







 


 


 
 


APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. MSP (Vestal/Coonerty) 5-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of January 16, 2019. 


Board Members Perez-Granados and Ranii abstained from the vote as they were absent for this 
meeting. 


2. MSP (Vestal/Coonerty) 5-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of the Governance Meeting 
on January 23, 2019.  
Board Member Perez-Granados abstained from the vote as she was absent for this meeting. 


 
GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 


 
Closed Session Items 
8.4.1.  Report of Closed Session Actions 


1. The Board of Education took action on Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations and Appointments. 


2. Ms. Parks did not have any information to share with the Trustees regarding Public 
Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 


3. The Board of Education heard an update from, and provided direction to, Ms. Parks 
regarding negotiations with the GSCFT for 2018-19. 


4.  The Board of Education conferred with Legal Counsel regarding anticipated litigation: 
Number of Cases: 1: Case: California Voting Rights Act-Trustee Area Elections 


5. The Board of Education heard an update from, and provided direction to, Mr. Gaffney 
regarding Property and Liability Claims for Harbor High School. 


 
ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 


 
8.5.2.1.  Bond Oversight Committee Annual Report 


Bond Oversight Committee President Bill Tysseling presented an annual report for the Board. 
In January, the Committee met with Crowe Horwath, an independent auditor, regarding the 
assessment of the Bond Projects. It was explained to the Board that the Bond Oversight 
Committee is an independent committee based on state law to review audits of bond 
expenditures. The external auditor reported no irregularities in the accounting processes and 
that expenditures consisted within state law. The committee reported being satisfied with the 
audit report and with the use of bond proceeds. The Board was interested to know what the 
bond oversight looks for during their review process. Mr. Tysseling explained that they begin 
with the language of the bond measures to ensure that proceeds are spent in alignment with 
the language, and then the committee reviews the auditor’s report upon completion. Following 
that, the committee may question the auditors to seek clarification on expenditures. For the 
last two years, the auditor has met with the committee and discussed questions raised. During 
the first year, questions were primarily about the model and detail about the report. Mr. 
Tysseling concluded that the committee’s charge begins with the evaluation with monies as 
spent, and does not include bidding, selection, or design. The committee exists to make sure 
funds are spent within the requirements of the measures, and it is the Superintendent and the 
Board who engage in decision-making about contracting for services 


. 
 


10/376







 


 


 
8.5.4.1. PUBLIC HEARING: Potential Composition of Trustee Areas Prior to Drawing of Maps 
 Open: Board President Tracy-Proulx opened this Public Hearing at 6:56 p.m. 


Public Comment: The President of the Greater Santa Cruz Federation of Teachers expressed 
concern about ensuring each Trustee maintains a focus on the district as a whole as we move to 
Trustee Area Elections.   She asked the Board to consider assigning two or more Trustees per 
school attendance area. She expressed a desire for the boundaries to be structured in a way 
that the Trustees will keep in mind that they are representing the whole district despite being 
elected in one area. 
 
Douglas Johnson provided a presentation to the Board from the National Demographics 
Corporation. The presentation began with an explanation of the California Voting Rights Act. 
Mr. Johnson noted that there are about three hundred jurisdiction cases across the state of the 
California, including school districts, community college districts, cities, and other special 
districts, and provided a breakdown of key settlement amounts to point out that this wave of 
litigations is driven by money. Mr. Johnson presented the districting process, which provided a 
timeline of public hearings, the release of draft maps, and the final hearing and map adoption. 
Mr. Johnson explained that there are rules and goals that need to be met when redrawing the 
trustee-area boundaries. Federal law requires the boundaries have equal populations, that they 
correspond to the Federal Voting Rights Act, and that there is no racial gerrymandering. He also 
procured a list of traditional redistricting principles for the Board to consider and potentially 
choose to use in redistricting. He explained that normally, consideration of future growth is part 
of the goal, however in this unique case, the 2020 census results will be provided in 2021, so 
the boundaries will need to be drawn again at that time. Mr. Johnson produced demographic 
data of the district population to show the Board and the public some ways the boundaries 
could be drawn according to certain categories. Those categories include the total racial 
population, the number of voters registered, household income, and others. To split our 
population evenly by the number of Trustees, seven, each division will contain about 16,771 
residents. Mr. Johnson showed a map of Latino population concentration, where most 
neighborhoods are integrated, and certain groups are not isolated. This information can be 
helpful when determining the communities of interest. Communities of interest is generally 
defined as a neighborhood or community of shared interests, views, problems, or 
characteristics that can be determined by things such as school attendance areas or areas 
around parks or other neighborhood landmarks. Another important note for consideration is 
the decision on whether the communities of interest will be united in one district, or if they will 
be divided so as to be heard in multiple elections. Mr. Johnson shared samples of highly 
compact maps, as well as samples of multiple-representative maps.  
 


 Closed: Board President Tracy-Proulx closed this Public Hearing at 7:19 p.m. 
 
   
8.5.4.2. Settlement Agreement and General Release of Claims related to California Voting Rights Act 


Legal counsel, Sarah Kaatz from Lozano Smith, presented the negotiated settlement agreement 
and general release of claims related to the California Voting Rights Act and recommended 
approval by the Board.  
 


11/376







 


 


Board member Vestal motioned to approve the settlement agreement. Board Member 
Coonerty seconded the motion. The settlement agreement and release of claims related to 
California Voting Rights Act was approved by the Board 7-0. 


 
 
8.5.1.1. Elementary ELA Task Force Update 


Director of Elementary Curriculum, Intervention, and Assessment, Mary Anne Robb, presented 
an update on the ELA Task Force. Ms. Robb began the presentation by explaining the Purpose 
to Practice (P2P) Protocol being used by the task force. The main goal of the ELA Task Force is 
to implement an articulated K-5 Tier 1 literacy program, which includes instructional materials 
and effective instructional practices. This will give English Language Learners, and all students, 
full access to the academic demands of the Common Core State Standards. Ms. Robb described 
the process that she and teacher leaders from each site are engaging in to choose an English 
Language Arts / English Language Development curriculum adoption for the elementary 
schools.  Ms. Robb conveyed that the task force would like to make a recommendation on a 
program to the Board by spring 2019, while continuing to meet and create an implementation 
plan for the ELA/ELD Instructional Program.  The Board asked questions about the piloted 
curriculum and a teacher on the task force shared her perspective on the process.  


 
8.5.2.2. Bond Projects Update 


Mr. Gaffney introduced Ralph LeRoux from MADI Architects to report to the Trustees on this 
matter.  Measure B projects included Bay View and DeLaveaga Elementary Schools and the 
Natural Bridges campus.  Measure A projects included Branciforte Small Schools and Soquel 
High School.  Information included updates on the projects for each site, an update on 
Stakeholder meetings, project milestones, plans for interim housing and site photos and 
architect renderings detailing designs and progress.    


 
 
8.5.2.3. Preliminary Enrollment Projections 2019-20 
 Assistant Superintendent Patrick Gaffney presented enrollment projections for the 2019-20 


academic school year. Mr. Gaffney explained that SCCS has partnered with DecisionInsite to 
create a demographic study of the school district to make short and long term enrollment 
projections. This initial study reflects current SCCS data, as well as feeder district data and plans 
for new housing. Mr. Gaffney explained that DecisonInsite creates two types of data: 
conservative and moderate. The conservative data has proven to be the most accurate, within 
2/10 of 1% in recent years.  Projections are used to forecast revenue and plan for staffing.  


 
8.5.3.4. 2nd Quarter Investment Report 


Assistant Superintendent Patrick Gaffney provided the 2nd Quarter Investment Report for 2018-
19, which ended on December 31, 2018. The report was provided by the County Office of 
Education, and includes summaries of the portfolio structure, investment details, securities 
activity by brokers, and other information that provides a better understanding of the 
investment activity within the District. Mr. Gaffney recommended approval of the 2nd Quarter 
Investment Report.  
 


12/376







 


 


Board member Threet motioned to approve the 2nd Quarter Investment Report. Board member 
Perez-Granados seconded the motion. The 2nd Quarter Investment Report was approved by the 
Board 7-0. 


 
 
8.5.4.3. Board Policy 3515: Campus Security – First and Possible Final Reading 


Superintendent Munro presented Board Policy 3514 on campus security and surveillance 
systems to the Board. The policy states: The Board believes that reasonable use of surveillance 
cameras will help the district achieve its goals for campus security. Cameras shall not be placed 
in areas where students, staff, or community members have a reasonable expectation of 
privacy. Superintendent Munro recommended approval of Board Policy 3514.  
 
Board Member Threet motioned approval to make this an initial reading and to bring the item 
back to the February 20, 2019 meeting. Board Member Perez-Granados seconded the motion. 
The Board approved the first reading of Board Policy 3514 5-0-2. 


 
 
8.5.4.4. Discussion: Possible Items for Future Meeting Agendas 


None 
 


GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 
 


8.1.  Consent Agenda  
8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated; 8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified; 8.1.3. Purchase 
Orders, Bids & Quotes; 8.1.4. Warrant Register; 8.1.5. Disposition of Surplus Property; 8.1.6. 
Transportation Safety Plan; 8.2.1. Superintendent: Contract: Clifford Moss – Pre-electoral 
Services; 8.2.2. Educational Services/Special Education: Agreement for Professional Services – 
Deborah Bell; 8.2.3. Educational Services/Student Services: Agreement for Professional Services 
– Balance4Kids; 8.2.4. Educational Services/Student Services: Memorandum of Understanding – 
Healthy Kids; 8.2.5. Educational Services/Soquel High: Over Night Field Trip; 8.2.6. Educational 
Services/Costanoa: Consultant Service Agreement – Anna Paganelli; 8.2.7. Educational 
Services/Santa Cruz High: Consultant Service Agreement: Planned Parenthood; 8.2.8. 
Educational Services/Bay View: Memorandum of Understanding – Corre La Voz; 8.2.9. 
Educational Services/Curriculum: College Readiness Block Grant-CIA Plan Revision; 8.2.10. 
Educational Services: NSF Computer Science for All Grant; 8.2.11. Education Services/Gault: 
Consultant Service Agreement – Project GLAD; 8.2.12. Business Services: Consultant Services 
Agreement – Jerene Lacey; 8.2.13. Elite Interactive Solutions: Change Order #1: Harbor High 
Additional Camera Locations; 8.3.1. BSN Sports: Quote: Harbor High Sports Equipment; 8.3.2. 
CRW Industries, Inc.: Proposal & Contract: Mission Hill Projector Screen Installation; 8.3.3. CRW 
Industries, Inc.: Change Order #3: Branciforte Small Schools: Power for Dryers; 8.3.4. CRW 
Industries, Inc.: Change Order #4: Mission Hill DSA Structural Requirements; 8.3.5. Enviroplex: 
Change Order #3: Harbor High Integrated Stucco to Concession; 8.3.6. Leach Group: Proposal & 
Contract: Harbor High Pool DSA Inspector of Record; 8.3.7. M3 Environmental: Proposal & 
Contract: Gault Lead Abatement Oversight; 8.3.8. M3 Environmental: Proposal & Contract: 
Santa Cruz Hazardous Materials Inspection; 8.3.9. M3 Environmental: Proposal & Contract: 
Santa Cruz Hazardous Materials Inspection; 8.3.10. Ross Recreation: Quote: Branciforte Small 
Schools Playground Kickplates. 


13/376







 


 


 
Dr. Coonerty motioned to pass the items for approval. Board member Threet seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved by the following roll call vote: 


 
Roll Call Vote:   Coonerty – Yes Shonick – Yes  Threet – Yes  Ranii – Yes  
   Tracy-Proulx – Yes Vestal – Yes  Perez-Granados – Yes  


 
9.  Adjournment of Meeting 


As there was no further business for the Trustees, Board President Tracy-Proulx adjourned this 
Regular Meeting at 9:50 p.m. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on February 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on February 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting on March 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Regular Meeting on March 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting on April 17, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Governance Session on April 24, 2019, 6:00p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library,  
300 La Fonda Ave., Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting on May 15, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on June 12, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


9. The Regular Meeting on June 19, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
 


* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 
recording: 


 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Deborah Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


14/376







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


  


  


AGENDA ITEM:                    Certificated Personnel Actions 


  


DATE:                                   March 6, 2019 


  


FROM:                                  Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:                          Kris Munro, Superintendent 


   


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve the certificated personnel actions as submitted. 


  


BACKGROUND: 


The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, 


California Education Code and the negotiated contract. 


 


 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 


Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 


career opportunities. 


Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 


cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups 


within the SCCS student community. 


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


15/376







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


 


 


 RELEASE OF TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES (EC 44954): 


 


Name Site FTE Assignment Eff Date Temp Type 


Erin Asamoto SQHS .20 English Teacher 6/7/19 Extra Period 


Mohamed Bouchti SCHS .33 Math Teacher 6/7/19 Extra Period 


Kali Campbell SCHS .17 Math Teacher 6/7/19 Extra Period 


Percy Chirinos SCHS .17 Math Teacher 6/7/19 Extra Period 


Bassel Faltas HHS .20 WASC Coordinator 6/7/19 Extra Period 


Dylan Gavin MHMS .20 Math Teacher 6/7/19 Leave Replacement 


Katie Hochler SCHS .17 Spanish Teacher 6/7/19 Extra Period 


David Kline SQHS .20 English Teacher 6/7/19 Extra Period 


Solange Nascimento SQHS .20 Spanish Teacher 6/7/19 Extra Period 


Matthew Oderman HHS .20 Social Studies Teacher 6/7/19 Extra Period 


Matt Schilz SQHS .20 Math Teacher 6/7/19 Extra Period 


Lisa Storer BSS .10 WASC Coordinator 6/7/19 Extra Period 


Ronald Walters SQHS .20 PE Teacher 6/7/19 Extra Period 


Carina Wandel SQHS .20 Math Teacher 6/7/19 Extra Period 


John Wilson SQHS .20 PE Teacher 6/7/19 Extra Period 


 


 


 


 


 


16/376







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2  


 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           


 


 


AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 


  


MEETING DATE:   March 6, 2019 


 


FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   


   


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 


           


BACKGROUND: 


The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 


Santa Cruz Council of Classified Employees Agreement and the Merit Rules. 


  


 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 


Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 


career opportunities. 


Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


17/376







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2  


 


CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS 


  


Reviewed by Classified Personnel Director: Keneé Houser 2/25/2019 


 


 •Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments• 


Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular): 


Alves, Aaron, Food Service Worker I - FS, 17.5hrs/9mos, effective 2/19/19 


Reyes, Alicia, Administrative Assistant - CIA, 40hrs/11mos, effective 2/19/19 


Velasquez, Clarissa, Program Coord, After School Programs - BV, 25hrs/9mos, effective 2/25/19 


Re-Hired:  


None 


Promotion: 


None 


Reclassification: 


None 


Demotion:  


None 


Increase/Reduction in FTE - Months/Hours of Service: 


None 


Additional FTE/Position:  


None 


39-Month Reinstatement: 


None 


39-Month Reinstatement w/Increase in FTE:  


None 


63-Month Reinstatement: 


None 


Transfer:  


None 


Transfer With Increase FTE: 


None 


Provisional Assignments (not to exceed 90 working days):  


None 


18/376







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2  


 


Leave of Absence:  


None 


Separation from Service: 


Haldi, Jacob, Food Service Worker I - FS, resignation, 3.5hrs/9mos, effective 2/21/19 


White, Christopher, Education Technology Specialist - IT, 40hrs/11mos, effective 2/8/19 


Retirement: 


None 


•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 


New Temporary Employees/Extra Work Agreement: 


Hilliard, Tara, Paraeducator/SPED - Various Sites - effective 2/4/19 


Jakl, Sara,. Paraeducator/SPED - Various Sites, effective 2/13/19  


Lau, Nadia, Yard Duty Monitor - BV - Various Sites, effective 2/19/19 


Ramirez Hernandez, Marta, Substitute Custodian - Various Sites/Depts., effective 2/20/19 


Existing Temporary Employees/Extra Work Agreement: 


Lopez, Areli, Paraeducator, After School Program - BV, not to exceed 4.25hrs, 1/22/19 to 


1/31/19 


Existing Regular Employees/Extra Work Agreement: 


Avila Moreno, Mario, Paraeducator, Academic Intervention - DL, not to exceed 34hrs, 1/24/19 


to 5/30/19 


Jorgensen, Kimberly, Food Service Worker III - FS, not to exceed 5hrs, 12/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Limited Term Retiree (not to exceed 960 hours per Government Code 21153): 


None 


Out of Class: 


None 


•Employment Actions Concerning Exempt Assignments from the Classified Service• 


Stipend: 


None  


•Eligibility Lists Established• 


Program Coordinator - After School Programs  


Education Technology Specialist  


School Administrative Assistant IV 


19/376







 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 


AGENDA ITEM:  Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  
 
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the purchase orders, quotes and bids as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors.  The following definitions are provided to clarify the 
differences between purchase orders, quotes and bids: 
 


Purchase Orders: For purchases routine in nature and over $2,500, but under the 
amount required for a quote. 


 
Quotes:  When purchases will be $6,500 to $15,000 for contracted work or 


$12,000 to $92,600 for materials/supplies, several vendors are 
contacted for written quotations.  This process, though not as rigorous 
as a bid, ensures that the District has involved more than one vendor 
and will secure a competitive price. 


 
Bids:  A formal process, including advertising to notify prospective bidders, 


distribution of written specification regarding the work or materials, 
and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, must be followed for 
contracted work projected to cost $15,000 and over, or for materials 
and supplies in the sum of $92,600 or over.  Bids are solicited from a 
wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is 
made to the lowest responsible bidder, the District receives the best 
price available. 


 
 
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 


20/376







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


March 6, 2019 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


      


  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
  


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-00122 Transportation $4,000.00 Blue Water Sedans Change Order to cover 
Transportation services.  
Transportation – Home to 
School. 


19-00008 Mission Hill $63,318.77 CRW Industries Change Order #4 – Additional 
Construction services added to 
the scope of work.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


19-00601 B40SS $3,084.48 CRW Industries Change Order #3 – Additional 
Electrical services added to the 
scope of work.  Bond, Measure 
B. 


19-02925 Mission Hill $19,336.91 CRW Industries Modernization Phase I – Main 
Bldg., Stage Projector Screen.  
Bond, Measure A. 


19-00492 Harbor High $4,457.00 CWS Construction Change Order #1 – Bolstering 
Frame for Grilles.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


19-02942 Santa Cruz High $4,929.63 Colorado Time Systems Two (2) Pool Deck Clocks.  
Facility Use Fees. 


19-03015 Westlake $8,027.84 Convergeone Thirty (30) Chromebooks.  
Donations. 


19-00894 Curriculum $2,800.00 Curriculum Assoc. Change Order to cover invoice 
for iReady Math Licenses.  
Unrestricted. 


19-00655 Harbor High $2,947.00 Enviroplex Change Order #3 – Add Stucco 
Color and Lights to Concession 
Exterior.  Bond, Measure A.  


19-02926 Harbor High $20,000.00 Leach Group DSA Inspection, Pool and Weight 
Room.  Bond, Measure A. 


19-02927 Gault $12,100.00 M3 Environmental Modernization Phase I – Exterior 
Painting, Lead Paint Survey.  
Bond, Measure B. 


19-03067 Santa Cruz High $2,910.00 Northern California 
Lacrosse 


Prepay – Referees.  Measure O. 


21/376







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


March 6, 2019 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


      


  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
  


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-03014 Harbor High $5,337.00 PSAT/NMSQT Confirming for Payment – Test 
Fees.  College Readiness Block 
Grant. 


19-03019 Soquel High $3,744.00 PSAT/NMSQT Confirming for Payment – Test 
Fees.  Other Restricted Local – 
Student Payments, Assess 
Student Performance. 


19-03013 Finance $17,767.00 SCI Consulting Confirming for Payment -
Consulting for Parcel Taxes.  
Unrestricted. 


19-02924 Harbor High $5,122.21 School Outfitters Furniture for Library.  Donations. 


19-00223 Facilities $5,000.00 United Rentals Change Order for Equipment 
Rentals.  Ongoing and Major 
Maint. 


 


22/376







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.4 
 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019  
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report.  The report covers vendor warrants 
issued from 2/8/19 – 2/21/19. Hard copies of the report are available for public review at the 
Board Meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


23/376







24/376







25/376







26/376







27/376







28/376







29/376







30/376







31/376







32/376







33/376







      AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.5 


 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Disposition of Surplus Property  
 
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019  
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of 
the surplus property on the attached list(s) in accordance with Board Policy 3270 and 
Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Education Code Section 17545(a) provides that the Board of Education may sell for cash any 
personal property belonging to the District if the property is not required for school purposes, 
or if it should be disposed of for the purpose of replacement, or if it is unsatisfactory or not 
suitable for school use. (b) The governing board may choose to conduct any sale of personal 
property authorized under this section by means of a public auction conducted by employees 
of the district or other public agencies, or by contract with a private auction firm. The board 
may delegate to the district employee responsible for conducting the auction the authority to 
transfer the personal property to the highest responsible bidder upon completion of the 
auction and after payment has been received by the district.  
 
Section 17546(a) If the governing board, by a unanimous vote of those members present, finds 
that the property, whether one or more items, does not exceed in value the sum of two 
thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500), it may be sold at private sale without advertising, by 
any employee of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. (b) Any item or items 
of property having previously been offered for sale pursuant to Section 17545, but for which 
no qualified bid was received, may be sold at private sale without advertising by any employee 
of the district empowered for that purpose by the board.  (c) If the board, by a unanimous vote 
of those members present, finds that the property is of insufficient value to defray the costs of 
arranging a sale, the property may be donated to a charitable organization deemed 
appropriate by the board, or it may be disposed of in the local public dump on order of any 
employee of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. 
 
Per Ed Code 60530(b), instructional materials may be destroyed by any economical means, 
provided that no instructional material shall be destroyed until 30 days after the governing 
board has given notice to all persons who have filed a request for such notice. 
 


34/376







SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 


MEETING OF MARCH 6, 2019  
 


SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 


Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  


                 
SITE:   HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL 


        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 


 
1. hp compaq 8000 elite small form 


factor desktop tower 12606 


 


10+ yrs obsolete 


         $0 


2. Computer desktop tower 16131231300211  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


3. hp compaq 8000 elite small form 


factor desktop tower 12682 
 


10+ yrs obsolete 
$0 


4. hp compaq 8000 elite small form 
factor desktop tower 12964 


 


10+ yrs obsolete 


$0 


5. hp compaq desktop tower 14720  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


6. hp compaq 8000 elite small form 
factor desktop tower 12537 


 


10+ yrs obsolete 


$0 


7. hp ProLiant ML110 desktop tower 14192  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


8. hp compaq desktop tower 14192  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


9. hp compaq 8000 elite small form 


factor desktop tower 12963 
 


10+ yrs obsolete 
$0 


10. hp Compaq desktop tower 15485  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


11. hp ProLiant ML110 desktop tower 15227  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


12. hp Compaq desktop tower 285729  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


13. hp Compaq desktop tower 15035  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


14. dell optiplex gx520 desktop tower 13825  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


15. apple imac g3 desktop tower 30491  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


16. dell optiplex 980 desktop tower 186063527845  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


17. hp Compaq desktop tower 45423817580  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


18. hp Compaq desktop tower 43711718876  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


19. hp Compaq desktop tower 80043156928852  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


20. hp Compaq desktop tower 43711805715  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


21. hp Compaq desktop tower 20370  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


22. apple imac g3 desktop tower 30491  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


23. hp laserjet 1022n printer 33017063  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


24. hp laserjet 1200 series printer CNBJT13432  10+ yrs obsolete $0 


       


     Total $0 


  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 


       


35/376







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Board Meeting Schedule for 2019-20 
 
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Board Meeting Schedule for 2019-20. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board Meeting Schedule is submitted for approval.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
This work is done in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding 
metrics: 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 
 


36/376







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS  
BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 2019-20 


YEAR BOARD MEETING DATE LOCATION 


2019 August 28 Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education – Board Room 


2019 September 4 Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education – Board Room 


2019 September 18 Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education – Board Room 


2019 October 16 Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education – Board Room 


2019 October 30 Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education – Board Room 


2019 November 6 Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education – Board Room 


2019 November 20 Harbor High School – Library 


2019 December 11 Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education – Board Room 


2020 January 15 Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education – Board Room 


2020 January 22 Harbor High School – Library 


2020 February 5 Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education – Board Room 


2020 February 19 Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education – Board Room 


2020 March 4 Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education – Board Room 


2020 March 18 Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education – Board Room 


2020 April 15 Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education – Board Room 


2020 April 29 Harbor High School – Library 


2020 May 6 Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education – Board Room 


2020 May 20 Harbor High School – Library 


2020 June 3 Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education – Board Room 


2020 June 17 Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education – Board Room 


37/376







AGENDA ITEM:   8.2.1 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 


AGENDA ITEM:  New Classified Job Description: Office Assistant 


      


MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 


 


FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent-Human Resources 


 


THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve the new classified job description for Office Assistant. 


 


BACKGROUND: 


This position will assist with a variety of clerical support tasks for departments in the District 


Office which include data entry, filing, scanning, answering phones, and being the first point of 


contact for visitors. There is not a cost increase to the District to add this position as the District 


Office is not refilling a vacant, part-time Human Resources Technician position. The job 


description was approved by the Personnel Commission on February 5, 2019. 


 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 


Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 


38/376







Office Assistant-District Office  Page 1 of 2 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


JOB DESCRIPTION 


OFFICE ASSISTANT- DISTRICT OFFICE 


 


DEFINITION: 


Under the direction of a Director or Assistant Superintendent, assist in a variety of general clerical support 


tasks to the departments in the district office, including but not limited to; data input/management, filing, 


scanning, answering phones, emails, assisting with new hires, provide excellent customer service and 


greeting and visitors. 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:   
● Perform a variety of diversified clerical duties in support of the District Office departments 
● Enter data into District databases.  
● Provide front desk support; answer inquiries from students, visitors, staff, and parents.  
● Assist with the processing and monitoring of staff attendance data  
● Respond to visitors’ requests and take appropriate actions. 
● Schedule and arrange appointments, conferences, and meetings as directed; distribute notices of 


meetings; maintain district calendars. 
● Monitor inventory levels of office supplies; order, receive and maintain inventory of office 


supplies. 
● Clerical support as needed within the District Office. 


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  


 


Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and one year of general clerical 


experience. Education may be substituted for work experience. 


 


Knowledge of:  


● Modern office practices, procedures and equipment. 


● Policies and objectives of assigned programs and activities. 


● Record-keeping and report preparation techniques. 


● Telephone techniques and etiquette. 


● Correct English usage, grammar, spelling, punctuation and vocabulary; basic math.  


● Operation of a computer and assigned software. 


● Oral and written communication skills. 


● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 


 


Ability to: 


● Perform a variety of diversified clerical and record-keeping duties. 


● Answer telephones and greet the public courteously.  


● Learn, interpret, apply and explain applicable laws, codes, rules and regulations. 


● Maintain records and prepare reports. 


● Type or input data at an acceptable rate of speed. 


● Operate a variety of office equipment including a computer and assigned software. 


● Understand and follow oral and written directions. 


39/376







Office Assistant-District Office  Page 2 of 2 
 


● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others and maintain 


regular attendance.  


● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing. 


● Meet schedules and timelines. 


● Receive, sort and distribute mail. 


● Add, subtract, multiply and divide quickly and accurately. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  


● Indoor/Office environment. 


● Fast paced work environment with changing needs.  


 


Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an 


employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may 


be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard. 


● Hearing and speaking to exchange information in person and on the telephone. 


● Sitting or standing for extended periods of time. 


● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 


● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching to file materials.    


Hazards: 


● Dissatisfied and hostile individuals.  


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act 


(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.   


Approved by Personnel Commission: 2/5/2019 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 19 


 


40/376







AGENDA ITEM:   8.2.2 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 


AGENDA ITEM:  Certificated Job Description – Special Education Compliance Coach 


      


MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 


 


FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent-Human Resources 


 


THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve updated description for Special Education Compliance Coach 


 


BACKGROUND: 


This job description is being updated to meet current legal and district needs.  This position was 


developed to support Special Education compliance-related issues.  This position trains, 


supports, and mentors Special Education Teachers to create legally compliant individual 


education plans, and to assist students through goal setting and assessment. 


 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 


 


 


41/376







 


Special Education Compliance Coach   Page 1 


 


 
Santa Cruz City Schools                 Job Description 


 
 
 
 
JOB TITLE:  Special Education Compliance Coach 
 
JOB SUMMARY: 
Under the general direction of the Director of Special Education, within the broader framework of 
standard district policies and procedures, the Special Education Compliance Coach will assess and respond 
to district compliance data (e.g., Individualized Education Program documents, SEIS data, CDE monitoring 
reports) to coordinate training and coaching for special education staff regarding the following: 
 


 Development of legally defensible IEPs 


 Implementation of Special Education procedures & IEP case management 


 Development of compliant IEPs for English Language Learners 


 Determining Reclassification of English Language Learners who are in Special Education 


 Determination of appropriate accommodations for State Assessments, including English Language 


Proficiency Assessments 


 Navigation of SEIS 


 Providing training and feedback on IEPs & assessment reports 


 Communicating with staff regarding changes within California Department of Education (CDE) or 


Special Education Local Planning Area (SELPA) requirements 


 Administration and interpretation of nationally normed academic assessments 


 Support facilitating IEP Meetings 


 Participate on the Special Education Instructional Leadership Team 


 Lead monitoring and compliance corrective activities as required by the California Department of 


Education. 


 
EXAMPLE OF DUTIES: 


 Analyze state reports to determine root cause(s), develop training to address and correct areas of 


concern 


 Read and provide feedback on IEPs and assessment reports, follow through with teachers to 


correct errors 


 Monitor SEIS process (attachments, affirm and attest IEPs in a timely manner, amendments) 


communicate with staff any changes within state or SELPA requirements 


 Monitor and collect data on progress reporting on IEP goals 


 Staff development in a variety of venues regarding IEP development, case management and IEP 


implementation 


 Training and support for special education teachers on how to use the current SELPA IEP system 


 Attend training on statewide assessments and disseminate needed information to relevant special 


education staff 


 


42/376







 


Special Education Compliance Coach   Page 2 


 


 
EXAMPLE OF DUTIES continued: 


 Engage in regular coaching sessions with new teachers until they have reached the appropriate 


level of proficiency 


 Other duties as assigned 


 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 
 
Training and Experience 
A minimum five years of successful special education teaching experience. Experience in case 
management, IEP development and implementation, curriculum and Common Core State Standards as 
well as strong computer literacy. 
 
Knowledge and Abilities: 
Knowledge and ability to implement state and federal special education laws and regulations, SELPA and 
District policies and procedures, and multiple models of service, classroom and behavior management 
techniques. Knowledge of the current SELPA computer‐based data system (e.g., SEIS) and how to access 
and efficiently utilize the electronic system data. Ability to work collaboratively with IEP teams and District 
administration; follow through in an organized, consistent and efficient manner; communicate effectively 
with staff and service providers. Demonstrate effective interpersonal skills, maintain confidentiality, 
support District goals and objectives and implementation of staff training. K‐12, RSP and SDC experience 
preferred. 
 
Physical Effort and Work Environment:  
Visual capability to read documents, computer screens; ability to conduct verbal conversation and hear 
normal range of verbal conversation; ability to sit for sustained periods of time, to bend, walk, climb stairs; 
lift up to 20 lbs.; carry up to 20 lbs. operate office equipment (computers, calculators, etc.) in a safe and 
effective manner; ability to work in a indoor and outdoor environments with exposure to a variety of 
weather conditions. 
 
Licenses and Credentials:  
Must hold a valid California Mild/Moderate Education Specialist Credential or the equivalent. A valid Class 
C California Driver's License and evidence of appropriate insurance may be required in addition to a valid 
First Aid and CPR Certificate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
First and/or Final Reading – March 6, 2018 


43/376







                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.3 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: New Certificated Job Description: International Baccalaureate 
Coordinator 


   
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent-Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the new certificated job description for International Baccalaureate Coordinator. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This position is being created to support the implementation of an International Baccalaureate 
program.  This position will support coordination of the International Baccalaureate program, 
and will focus on areas such as assessment, coordination, communication, curriculum and 
teacher training.     
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 


44/376







International Baccalaureate Coordinator   Page 1 
 


	


Santa Cruz City Schools           Job Description 


 


JOB TITLE:  International Baccalaureate Coordinator 


JOB SUMMARY 
The International Baccalaureate  (IB) Coordinator is a teacher‐leadership position that is crucial to the 
success of the IB programme. Under the general direction of the principal or principal’s designee, the IB 
Coordinator acts as the pedagogical leader for the IB Programme and is responsible for the academic 
progress of students in the program. The IB Coordinator promotes and manifests the vision of the 
district, school and staff values as it relates to all students and IB candidates. Additionally, the IB 
Coordinator ensures that teachers are supported by the IB resources, aware of assessment procedures, 
and creates and manages an internal calendar of dates of assessments and other materials required by 
the IB. The coordinator must develop, implement and maintain the IB Diploma Programme with fidelity 
according to IB Organization regulations. 
 
ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS 


● Coordinate and carry out all IB‐related communications/public relations information; including 
presentations for administrators, teachers, parent/guardians, middle school recruitment and 
community outreach 


● Ensure that teachers, parents/guardians and students understand the curriculum and 
assessment requirements of the Diploma Programme and the subjects offered at the school 


● Facilitate the IB authorization and accreditation process; serve as lead in the development of the 
accreditation documents 


● Facilitate IBO visitations; serves as liaison for IBO office and consultancy 
● Assist staff in scheduling and enrolling in professional development for IB and facilitate access 


and purchase of curriculum for IB courses 
● Provide and facilitate staff development activities needed to coordinate and implement the 


program 
● Serve as a member of SCIL (Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership Team) and act as a resource for 


Departments, and Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) on curricula and program 
requirements 


● Communicate regularly with district and site administration; coordinate presentations, including 
presentations made to the board of trustees 


● Provide IB‐related counseling service to students and parents regarding appropriate class 
placement 


● Assist in hiring, training and scheduling of teachers with regards to IB 
● Facilitate all IB examination elements including test orders, fee waivers/reductions, test storage, 


test locations and scheduling, and student testing accommodations  
● Meet with parents of all anticipated diploma candidates annually 
● Articulate regularly with counselors, students, staff, and parents, with respect to IB 


requirements, student enrollment and retention, IB pathway options, and university admissions 
● Communicate regularly with IB teaching staff, administration and the IBO offices to ensure 


smooth coordination of program 
 
 
 
 
 


45/376







International Baccalaureate Coordinator   Page 2 
 


 
 
 
EXAMPLE OF DUTIES 


● Prepare a calendar of academic and examination deadlines, especially Extended essays, World 
Literature essays, face to face oral examinations, Theory of Knowledge and Internal Assessments 
and monitor timeline implementation; monitor and adapt curriculum, program and procedures 
based on future International Baccalaureate Organization (IBO) program or regulations changes 


● Attend regional and national IB conferences 
● Monitor examination materials, publications, proctoring services, and IB professional 


development; collect IB exam fees; submit fee reduction applications and communicate with 
finance clerk and principal on budget procedures 


● Facilitate examination process, including but not limited to organizing the examination session 
in May with regard to student accommodations, location, scheduling, and proctoring 


● Ensure all IB students are properly registered for exams; manage and communicate results to 
families and universities 


● Teach and supervise Theory of Knowledge course and diploma candidates and Creativity, Action, 
Service (CAS) program  


● Complete IB authorization application, meet and communicate with IB consultant, and meet IB 
deadlines 


● Maintain all IB student and staff records including updating IB statistics 
● Coordinate IB teacher training workshops 
● Present data on impact of IB programme to the board of trustees 
● Collect and analyze data on students in IB courses 
● Responsibilities beyond normal school hours on occasion  
● Perform other related duties and responsibilities as assigned  


 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Experience 


● Skill in instructional planning and consultation/coordination  
● Leadership or curriculum development experiences 
● Experience in group facilitation and conducting professional development in one or more subject 


matters 
● Demonstrated ability to work in collaboration with district and school site administrators 
● Excellent interpersonal and communication skills 
● High degree of organization and effective time management 


 
Knowledge of: 


● Effective teacher professional development and presentation practices 
● Skills in group facilitation 
● Public speaking skills 
● Understand the complexities and dynamics of building a master schedule  
● Strong oral and written communication skills 
● Ability to travel and attend workshops and conferences throughout the year 
● Willingness to flex work schedule to meet the needs of the position 
● Demonstrated skills in analyzing and using data and research for instructional decision‐making 
● Ability to maintain confidentiality 
● Strong problem identification and solving skills to effectively administer the IB program throughout 


the year 
 
 


46/376







International Baccalaureate Coordinator   Page 3 
 


 
 
Ability to: 


● Work and educate learners of all abilities and backgrounds  
● Communicate professionally and effectively in written and oral forms 
● Lead and organize a variety of tasks and responsibilities 
● Use multiple instructional methodologies, instructional strategies, and effective teaching practices                         
● Effectively motivate and facilitate groups 
● Demonstrate understanding of 21st century educational and instructional technologies 
● Manage and maintain a budget 
● Exercise professional discretion and judgment in actions and communications 
● Plan and provide high quality staff development on a variety of subjects and topics 


 
Education and Experience: 
Valid California Single Subject Teaching Credential in a core subject area, combined with a minimum 3 years 
successful teaching experience  


 
Physical Effort / Work Environment:  
These physical characteristics described here are representative of those that must be met by an 
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.  The employee must be able to: 


● Lift, carry, push or pull items with a strength factor of up to 25 pounds 
● Hear and speak in audible tones to exchange information in person or on the telephone 
● Have mobility sufficient to move about, stand, and/or sit for extended periods, and access all 


locations in the work environment 
● Have flexibility and strength to reach with hands and arms, reach above shoulder level as 


necessary and, be able to bend and stoop 
● Have manual dexterity to appropriately control and manipulate objects, materials, and 


equipment used on the job, including telephone and computer 
 
 
 
 
First and/or Final Reading – March 6, 2019 
 


 


47/376







        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Overnight Field Trip—Costanoa High School  
      
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the overnight field trip request for Costanoa High School students to travel to Big Sur, 
California from March 13 through March 15, 2019.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
A group of ten Costanoa students, who have been participating in the year-long Mountains 2 
Sea program, have the opportunity to attend an overnight backpacking trip to Big Sur, California 
in the Ventana Wilderness. Three chaperones and one staff member will accompany the 
students on this trip. Students will miss three days of school. 
 
Mountains 2 Sea partners with the Ventana Wilderness Alliance program, Youth in Wilderness. 
Students have been building skills for this overnight trip on their weekly outings with Mountains 
2 Sea. This trip is part of the process to build a foundation for healthy lifestyles, community 
leadership, problem‐solving skills, and conservation ethics by providing outdoor education to 
local students on the public lands of the Ventana and Silver Peak Wildernesses. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. There is no cost for this trip as fees for participation in Mountains 2 Sea have already 
been paid.  The estimated actual cost is $2,400 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


48/376







Costanoa High School/MTNS2SEA Big Sur Backpacking Trip 


Description  


Costanoa students and MTNS2SEA (MTNS2SEA.org) will take a backpacking trip to Ventana 
Wilderness (http://www.ventanawild.org/youth/youth-in-wilderness) with the goal of 
summiting the Juniper Serra Peak in the Big Sur Mountains from March 13 - 15. No district 
funds will be used to carry out the trip. MTNS2SEA and Youth in Wilderness will cover all the 
costs and no student will be turned away for lack of funds. The principal of Branciforte Small 
Schools is in full support of the trip. 


Educational component 


Students will engage in the following activities to earn credits and further their education: 


-Team Building Activities (Leadership) 


-Backpacking Basics: planning, packing, and executing a safe trip 


-Mindfulness Activities 


-Journal entries of real-time experiences 


-Identification of natural flora and fauna 


-Written reflection of overall experience 


Itinerary  


Wednesday, March 13th 


Students will travel in the MTNS2SEA van to Arroyo Seco Memorial Park Campground (1.5 hour 
drive). Once arriving at the parking lot there is a 2-4 mile hike into the backcountry 
campground.  


Thursday, March 14th 


Students will spend the day hiking 2-5 miles to Juniper Serra Peak and complete the goals of the 
educational component. 


Friday, March 15th 


Students and chaperones will hike the 2-4 miles back to the vehicles and drive back to the BSSC 
campus arriving by 4-5pm. 


Student-to-chaperone ratio  


2:1 


 


49/376







Number of Students: 10 
Number of Chaperones: 3 
Number of Staff: 1 
Number of school days missed: 3 
Transportation: Mountains 2 Sea vehicles (2) 
Hotel accommodations: None. Students will spend two nights at a designated campsite on the 
trail and will be provided with tents, mats and sleeping bags. 
 
 


50/376







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Consultant Services Agreement: National Coalition Building  
    Institute 
      
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Retroactively approve the Consultant Services Agreement for National Coalition Building 
Institute. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
National Coalition Building Institute is a nonprofit leadership training organization that 
specializes in diversity, equity, and inclusion skills. The Diversity Task Force at Soquel High 
School found this program after seeking advice from San Lorenzo Valley High School. In the 
past, National Coalition Building Institute has supported the school by recruiting students to 
participate in student leadership. Students and staff from Soquel High School will participate in 
Diversity and Inclusion Leaders training on February 19th and 20th, 2019. 
 
National Coalition Building institute will train both student and teacher leaders to be facilitators 
of diversity and equity workshops. This two day training will give teachers and staff members 
the needed tools to continue to mentor student leaders, and in turn, train the student leaders 
to train other students. The goal is to use the knowledge gained during the trainings to create a 
weeklong diversity and equity workshop that will be offered annually to all 9th grade students in 
their physical education classes. The student leaders will be facilitating the workshop. 9th grade 
students who participate in this workshop will develop a greater sense of belonging and 
connectedness at Soquel High School. 
 
This is a retroactive request for a Consultant Services Agreement. The teacher initiating this 
workshop was unaware of the additional processes that are needed for a Consultant Services 
Agreement. The need for prior approval has been explained to this teacher and they will 
remedy this in future requests. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$5,000 LCFF base (Unrestricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


51/376







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.5. 


Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


52/376







53/376







54/376







55/376







        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Overnight Field Trip—Soquel High School  
      
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the overnight field trip for the Soquel High School Music Department to attend the 
Anaheim Heritage Music Festival on April 25-28, 2019, in Anaheim, California. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Soquel High School Music Department requests approval to travel to Anaheim, California, 
and surrounding areas for the Worldstrides Heritage Music Festival from April 25-28, 2019. 
Students will miss school for part of Thursday the 25th and all of Friday the 26th. This year’s trip 
will accommodate approximately one hundred students, and will include two staff members 
and ten parent chaperones. The groups participating are the Soquel Concert Choir, Varsity 
Band, Jazz A and B Band, and Jazz Singers (A).  The group will be traveling by charter bus with 
West Valley Charters.  
 
The Worldstrides Heritage Festival is unparalleled in the number and quality of instrumental 
and choral performing groups from throughout the country, and offers worldwide travel 
opportunities. This is a truly outstanding educational experience, and Soquel High would 
appreciate the opportunity to continue to expose its students to this. Soquel Music 
Department’s participation in the Worldstrides Heritage Festival has been ongoing for over 20 
years, traveling to locations such as Anaheim, Los Angeles, and San Diego.  These events have 
allowed our students to hear some of the best adjudicators in the country, as well as other high 
school ensembles from around the country, while performing in outstanding performance 
facilities.  In order to provide students in the performing arts the opportunity to see and hear 
live performances, they must travel beyond the constraints of their high school experience.  
Traveling to various music festivals has given performing arts students the opportunity to see 
and hear creative, intellectual, and expressive music performances, which expands and 
enriches their learning outside of the conventional classroom. Along with providing an 
exceptional educational experience, this trip also provides a tremendous opportunity to 
develop an ensemble and camaraderie, which will enhance performance experiences, self-
confidence, and promote a stronger sense of self.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
No student will be denied attendance due to lack of funds. The majority of the trip will be paid 
for by family contributions and fundraising. 
 


56/376







        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.6. 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social-emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


57/376







        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.6. 


 
ITINERARY:   
Thursday, April 25th - Depart from Soquel HS between 8:30am-1pm Arrive at Marriott Hotel 
Irvine for check in.   
Friday, April 26th - Travel to festival sites and perform, watch other groups, eat lunch.   
Saturday, April 27th - Attend Disneyland Park and awards ceremony in park.   
Sunday, April 28th - Depart from hotel by approximately 9am 
 
Number of students attending: 100 (75 band students and 25 choir students) 
Number of chaperones attending: 10 
Number of staff attending: 2 
Transportation: West Valley Charter Buses 
Hotel Accommodations: Marriott Hotel, Irvine, CA 
 


58/376







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.7. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Consultant Services Agreement: American Council on the  
    Teaching of Foreign Languages 
      
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Consultant Services Agreement with the American Council on the Teaching of 
Foreign Languages for a professional development series for secondary World Language 
teachers. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This month the state approved new World Language Content Area Standards. Our secondary 
World Language teachers have requested professional development on the new standards, as 
well as evidence based instructional practices that support students in the acquisition of a 
foreign language.  The American Council on the Teaching of Foreign Languages will provide a 
three-day training for all secondary World Language teachers.  
 
The goal for this three-day training is to create a common background in standards-based and 
proficiency-oriented language learning, build expertise in high-leverage teaching practices to 
develop language proficiency, and collaboratively design units of instruction. 
 
Specific elements of the three-day training and accompanying training modules include the 
following: 
 
1. Virtual Learning Module on Developing Proficiency serve as preparation for the on-site 
institute 


● Use for individual preparation and building level discussion 
● Build understanding of the Novice, Intermediate, and Advanced ranges of proficiency 
● Complete before, during, and after viewing activities and reflections 


 
2. Three-Day World Language Program Institute (April 15-17, 2019)  


● Focus on creating curriculum aligned with new California World Language Standards 
(which are aligned with the World-Readiness Standards and Can-Do Statements that 
identify what learners can do at each sub-level of the proficiency continuum) 


● Shift from textbook-based to standards and proficiency-based instruction 
● Design units of instruction centered on engaging and culturally relevant content 


 


59/376







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.7. 


3. Virtual Learning Modules (Two additional sets of modules that build on content of Program 
Institute) 


● Developing the Interpretive Mode with Authentic Resources 
● Strategies to Guide Learners to Their Next Level 


 
4. Videoconference Coaching (as follow-up to Program Institute) 


● Presenter connects via videoconference to expand on institute content 
● Presenter coaches language educators by responding to educators’ questions and 


challenges as well as sharing additional implementation strategies 
 
Evaluation 
We will evaluate the effectiveness of this professional development based on the following 
metrics: 


● Re-aligned Scope & Sequence for Spanish 1, Spanish 2, and Spanish 3 
● Lesson plans focused on standards and instructional strategies to support all learners 
● Administrative walk-throughs looking for student engagement, teacher clarity, and 


supports for all learners 
● More students passing Spanish 1, 2, & 3 with a grade of C or higher 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$7,350.00 to be paid from the Secondary School Block Grant & Title 1 (Restricted) 
 


1. Virtual Learning Modules (total of three @ $150 for single login access for the district = 
$450)  


2. On-site Program Institute (three-day workshop fee of $4200 plus all travel expenses at 
$1700 = $5900)  


3. Videoconference Coaching Sessions (two 120-minute sessions @ $500 = $1000)  
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 


60/376







61/376







62/376







63/376







64/376







65/376







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.8. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Santa Cruz City Schools Five-Year Technology Plan 
      
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Five-Year Technology Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
During the February 20, 2019, Board Meeting, staff presented the Tech Task Force’s process for 
developing the Five-Year Technology Plan and the goals of the plan. The district’s Five-year 
Technology Plan is finalized and ready for Board review and approval.  Below is a brief summary 
of the plan. For plan details, refer to the Five-Year Technology Plan attached to this document. 
 
Plan Summary: 
The District is committed to implementing the technology integration standards outlined by the 
state. Our Technology Plan is intended to serve as a guide for technology-related decision 
making, as well as an instrument to monitor and evaluate progress toward identified goals and 
objectives. Our ultimate goal for this plan is to create the "essential conditions necessary to 
effectively leverage technology for learning." (ISTE, 2013) 
 
PROCESS AND TIMELINE FOR DEVELOPING TECH PLAN 
Fall/Winter 2018: Student, Parent, and Staff Tech Survey Administration and Analysis 
October 2018: Tech Plan draft to Principals/Assistant Principals 
November 2018: Tech Coach and Tech Task Force Technology Plan Input Meeting 
January 2019: Tech Task Force Final Input 
February 2019: Tech Plan goes to Principals for final input 
March 2019: Tech Plan goes to Board for Approval 
 
This Technology Plan is the result of many hours of communication, collaboration, and research 
between a diverse representation of stakeholders, including the Santa Cruz City Schools Tech 
Task Force, which is comprised of district and site administrators, teachers, and community 
members.  
 
Plan Duration: March, 2019 - June, 2023  
The Technology Plan will serve as the primary tool to guide the district's acquisition, 
sustainability, and integration of technology to support the district's instructional goals. The 
plan will be reviewed multiple times each school year and revised as needed.  


66/376







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.8. 


Needs Assessment 
Student, parent, and staff technology surveys were implemented in conjunction with the 
District’s Computer Science for All National Science Foundation Grant during the 2018-19 
school year. The results of this year’s surveys have been compiled and are in Appendix A of the 
Five-Year Technology Plan. The data gathered from these surveys helped inform the focus, 
goals, and action steps of the District’s Five-Year Technology plan. 
 
Structure of the Five-Year Technology Plan  
There are four major components of the Five-Year Technology Plan as well as a budget outlining 
the cost of implementing the plan. Within each component there are goals, metrics, and an 
action plan for achieving our goals. The four major components of the plan are outlined below. 
 
Four Major Components of Five-Year Technology Plan 


1) Curriculum Implementation: Digital Citizenship, Digital Literacy, and Computer Science 
Curriculum 


2) Instructional Technology Professional Development 
3) Data and Assessment Implementation 
4) Infrastructure, Hardware, Systems, and Policies 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Although estimated costs have been identified, not all of these costs have been incorporated 
into the multi-year budget.   Your action to approve the plan is not an approval of all of the 
following expenditures indicated by TBD.  Staff will attempt to identify sources of revenue to 
achieve the plan in the coming years. 
 


Description of Tech Related Budget Item Estimated Cost Funding Source 


1.0 FTE K-12 Instructional Technology Coach $120,000/year TBD 


Increasing the internet infrastructure at each site $4,000,000 Plus Bond 
(Restricted) 


Summer 2019 Chromebook Replacements (2,500 
Chromebooks - 55%) 


$750,000 Natural Bridges 
Lease Revenue 
(Unrestricted) 


Summer 2020 Chromebook Refresh (1,000 Chromebooks 
- 25%) 


$300,000 TBD 


Summer 2021 Chromebook Refresh (1,000 Chromebooks 
- 25%) 


$300,000 TBD 


Annual Teacher Tech Upkeep and Replacement $138,000 (460 Chromebooks) TBD 


Google Suite Free  None 


67/376







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.8. 


Google Classroom and Illuminate Support $12,000 TBD 


Google Diagnostics to maximize system $5,000 TBD 


Fresh Desk: Tech Ticket System $900.00 LCFF Base 
(Unrestricted) 


Blackboard (Messaging System) $9,687.00 LCFF Base 
(Unrestricted) 


Sharpschool Website Content Management System (13 
websites) 


$8,120 LCFF Base 
(Unrestricted) 


Tech Cadres - Professional Development (20 teachers = 1 
cadre) 


$25,000/year = 1 cadre  
$50,000/year = 2 cadres 


TBD 


Summer Mini Merit Professional Development (20 
teachers, week long summer training) 


$20,000/summer  TBD 


Increasing Information Technology Support to be one 
Information Technology per secondary site and two for 
all Elementary Sites 


$300,000 (4 FTE) TBD 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
  


68/376







1 


  
 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools Five Year Technology Plan 
 


March 6, 2019 - June 30, 2023 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


PLAN BACKGROUND: This plan guides Santa Cruz City Schools’ use of education technology for the next five years, 2019-2023. 69/376







2 


 
Santa Cruz City Schools Overview: 
Santa Cruz City Schools is a unique combination of two school districts under one common board and administration. With an exceptional 
teaching staff and an involved parent community at each of our schools, we offer a well-balanced, full range of educational opportunities 
to our students. Santa Cruz City Schools, part of a dynamic and diverse coastal community, ensures that each student acquires the 
necessary knowledge, skills, and values to achieve his or her highest aspirations and to be a contributing member of a rapidly changing 
society.  
 


District Profile 
The following data offers a snapshot of our district during the 2018-19 school year. The district website is located at http://www.sccs.net 
where additional information can be found about the district and its schools. 


 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


 Elementary Middle High Alternative District Totals 


Number of Schools 4 2 3 4 13 


Enrollment 1,841 1,073 3,157 396 6,467 


Full-time Equivalent Teachers 147 57 183 10 387 


Pupil-Teacher Ratio 20:1 21:1 23:1   


 
Our curriculum consists of the Common Core State Standards, Next Generation Science Standards and California State Content Area 
Standards adopted by California. The district provides a challenging and integrated curriculum for our students. Our priorities include the 
integration of art, music, and library-media to enhance student learning. As part of our secondary schools, the Advancement Via Individual 
Determination program provides students who may be at risk and/or in the academic middle with opportunities to participate in rigorous 
academic content as well as receive support for these classes and the transition to college and careers. In addition, we have a robust 
Career and Technical Education program providing students with many opportunities to take courses embedded in a variety of Career and 
Technical Education career pathways.  
 
Santa Cruz City Schools is made up of four traditional elementary schools, two comprehensive middle schools, and three comprehensive 
high schools, as well as the following alternative programs: 


● Alternative Family Education for K-12 home-based education 
● Monarch Community School (K-5) where students work in multi-grade level classrooms with required parent participation 
● ARK Independent Studies High School (9-12)  
● Costanoa Alternative High School 


 
 
 70/376







3 


Santa Cruz City Schools Vision Statement 
Create and support a learning environment that challenges and enables students to achieve their highest potential. 
Core Values:  We believe... 


● that public schools are the foundation of our democracy  
● that every person has intrinsic worth 
● in treating people with dignity and respect 
● that high standards and expectations foster greater achievement 
● that each of us shares responsibility for the welfare of our community  
● that diversity is an asset in our community 
● that honesty and integrity are essential in building relationships  
● that schools must provide access and equity 
● that people thrive in safe environment


 
Santa Cruz City Schools Strategic Goals
1.  All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities. 


2.  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and the social emotional 


well-being of all students. 


3.  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS student community. 


4.  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching. 


5.  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


6.  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 


 
Five Year Technology Plan Purpose & Goal 
The District is committed to implementing this Five Year Technology Plan which is aligned to our district goals and a shared vision for 
school effectiveness and student learning through the infusion of instructional technologies and digital learning resources. Our Technology 
Plan is intended to serve as a guide for technology-related decision making, as well as an instrument to monitor and evaluate progress 
toward identified goals and objectives. Our ultimate goal for this plan is to create the "essential conditions necessary to effectively 
leverage technology for learning." (ISTE, 2013) 


 
PROCESS AND TIMELINE FOR DEVELOPING TECH PLAN 
● Fall/Winter 2018: Student, Parent, and Staff Tech Survey Administration and Analysis 
● October 2018: Tech Plan draft to Principals/Assistant Principals 
● November 2018: Tech Coach and Tech Task Force Technology Plan Input Meeting 
● January 2019: Tech Task Force Final Input 
● February 2019: Tech Plan goes to Principals for final input 
● February 2019: Tech Plan update to Board 
● March 2019: Tech Plan goes to Board for Approval 


 
 


71/376







4 


This Technology Plan is the result of many hours of communication, collaboration, research, and problem solving between a diverse 
representation of stakeholders including the Santa Cruz City Schools Tech Task Force, which is comprised of district and site admin, 
teachers, and community members. The purpose of the Tech Task Force is to draft the district Technology Plan and evaluate its 
implementation and impact on student learning.  
 
Plan Duration: March, 2019 - June, 2023  
The Technology Plan will serve as the primary tool to guide the district's acquisition, sustainability, and integration of technology to 
support the district's curricular and instructional goals. This plan will be monitored by the following: the department of Curriculum, 
Instruction, and Assessment, the department of Technology, site administrators, and the Tech Task Force. The plan will be reviewed 
multiple times each school year and revised as needed. Any significant modifications to this plan which are indicated as a result of regular 
review, will be communicated to both the District superintendent and Governing Board on a yearly basis. 
 
Needs Assessment 
A student, parent, and staff Technology Survey was implemented in conjunction with a Grades 3-8 Computer Science for All National 
Science Foundation Grant during the 2018-19 school year. In future years, our district will consider using the Speak Up Survey, a nationally 
normed education technology survey, with students, parents, and teachers. The data gathered from these surveys helped inform the 
focus, priorities, goals, and action steps of this five year tech plan. See highlights from these surveys at the end of this tech plan in 
Appendix A.  


1. CURRICULUM PLAN 


Digital Citizenship, Digital Literacy, & Computer Science Curriculum 


GOALS: 
By the end of our Five Year Tech Plan, all students will... 


● have equitable experience gaining computer skills and computer science skills as outlined by grade span in the articulated curriculum chart 
below. 


● have access to online texts, databases, and other curricular resources as well as the skills to navigate them. 
● think critically, behave safely, and participate responsibly in our digital world (see Digital Citizenship curriculum outlined below).  


METRICS: 
● percentage of discipline issues related to misuse of tech, cyber bullying, etc. will decrease.  
● percentage of underrepresented students in the Computer Science pathway class increases. 


2018 - 2019 2019 - 2021 2021 - 2023 


Action Plan: Action Plan: Action Plan: 


Develop articulated district plan to teach Digital 
Citizenship at all grade spans 
 


Implement articulated district plan to 
teach Digital Citizenship at each grade 
span 


Refine district Digital Citizenship focus for each 
grade span as needed 
 


72/376







5 


All principals, teachers, and librarians will be aware of 
the Common Sense Media Curricula. 


Implement Common Sense Media, a K-12 
curriculum unit for each grade level, to 
teach students about digital citizenry.  


● K-5 Library Media Technician 
library curriculum 


● 6-8 Library Media Technician 
library curriculum w/ Core Class 


● High School Health Curriculum  
● All teachers at each grade span 


reinforce grade span digital 
citizenship topics and concepts, 
computer skills, and Computer 
Science skills  


Update Digital Citizenship lessons and/or stay 
current with Common Sense Media lessons. 


● K-5 Library Media Technician library 
curriculum 


● 6-8 Library Media Technician library 
curriculum w/ Core Class 


● High School Health Curriculum  
● All teachers at each grade span reinforce 


grade span digital citizenship topics and 
concepts, computer skills, and Computer 
Science skills  


Age appropriate Acceptable Use Policy is updated for 
students and parents. 


Acceptable Use Policy is reviewed every 
year with students. 


Acceptable Use Policy is reviewed every year with 
students. 


 Make contact with University of California 
Santa Cruz Game Design College with a 
focus on women. 
 
Arts Academy Computer Science or other 
after school Computer Science class (e.g., 
Game Design, coding, etc.) 


University of California Santa Cruz partnership 
continued. 
 
 
After school class continued. 


 
Articulated Digital Citizenship & Tech Skills Focus by Grade Span 


We use Common Sense Media as one of our main curriculums to instruct students in Digital Citizenship.  


Common Sense Digital Literacy and Citizenship Curriculum Standards Alignment 


International Society for Technology in Education (ISTE) Standards for Teachers 


K-2 3-5 6-8 9-12 


● Common Sense Media 
Curriculum Training 


● Additional videos via NetSafe 


● Common Sense Media 
Curriculum Training 


● Be internet awesome 
(Nearpod)  


● Additional videos via NetSafe 


● Common Sense Media 
Curriculum Training 


● Additional videos via 
NetSafe 
 


● Common Sense Media 
Curriculum Training 


● Additional videos via 
NetSafe 
 


K-2 Digital Citizenship Scope & 
Sequence 


3-5 Digital Citizenship Scope & 
Sequence 


6-8 Digital Citizenship Scope & 
Sequence 


9-12 Digital Citizenship Scope & 
Sequence 


73/376







6 


● Navigating the internet 
safely (safe searches, safe 
sites, etc.) 


● Creating and sending email 
● Show respect online 


● Personal and Private 
Information and what gets 
shared online 


● Citing online sources, 
copyright, and identifying high 
quality sources 


● Cyberbullying  


● Citing online sources, 
copyright and identifying  
high quality sources/sites 


● Online scams, schemes, 
and being safe 


● Cyberbullying 


● Risky Online 
Relationships and Sexting 


● Online Integrity 
● Cyberbullying 


Tech Skills Focus: 
● Mouse skills 
● Keyboarding 
● Beginning Word Processing 


 


Tech Skills Focus: 
● Keyboarding 
● Word Processing  
● PowerPoint or other 


Presentation software 
 


Tech Skills Focus: 
● Use Google docs & drive to 


create, share, and organize 
assignments 


● Use Google classroom 
● Create Multimedia 


presentation  


Tech Skills Focus: 
● Refining all previously 


acquired skills 
● Specialty tech skills 


related to specific 
content areas and/or 
career pathways 


Computer Science Skills: 
● Create algorithms, or series 


of ordered steps, to solve 
problems unplugged and 
digitally 


● Write programs using visual 
(block-based) programming 
languages 


● Implement problem 
solutions using a programing 
language (example: 
Demonstrate Sequence, 
iteration) 


Computer Science Skills: 
● Collect, analyze and represent 


data effectively 
● Decompose a problem into 


smaller, more manageable 
parts 


● Intro into conditional 
statements 


Computer Science Skills: 
● Create simulations / 


models to understand 
natural phenomena and 
test hypotheses 


● Write  text-based using 
programming languages 


● Design, code , test, and 
execute a program that 
corresponds to a set of 
specifications 


● Continue conditional 
statements 


● Intro functions 


Computer Science Electives: 
● Intro to Computer 


Science 
● Advanced Placement 


Computer Science 
● Exploring Computer 


Science 
● Engineer software and or 


hardware solutions for 
real-world problems 


● Create a product to 
demonstrate and 
communicate curriculum 
concepts 


Parent Tech Training: 
● Age appropriate screen use 
● Intro to Illuminate 


Parent Tech Training: 
● Healthy tech 
● Intro to Google Drive and 


Classroom 


Parent Tech Training: 
● Adolescent brain 


development and tech 
● Navigating social media  
● Setting limits and earning 


rewards 


Parent Tech Training: 
● Technology addiction 
● Risky Online 


Relationships (other 
article) 


● Screens and Teens 
● Tips for Teens and 


Screens 


74/376







7 


K-2 3-5 6-8 9-12 


2. EDUCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN:  


Professional Development 


GOALS: 
By the end of our Five Year Tech Plan, we will… 


● provide all teachers with an articulated list of grade level technology priority standards.  
● train all teachers to use Google Apps for Education (e.g, Google Classroom, Google Calendar, Google Drive, etc.).  
● have systematic training (Tech Cadres) for current assessment systems, student data systems (e.g., Illuminate, Measures of Academic Progress), 


and instructional technology. 
● implement the Substitution, Argumentation, Modification, and Redefinition instructional technology model. 
● integrate instructional technology into curriculum, assignments, assessments, etc. on a daily basis. 


METRICS: 
● Site administrators regularly incorporate education technology into staff meetings and staff professional development sessions. 
● New teacher orientation includes beginning training for Illuminate, Google, etc.  
● A minimum of 50% of teachers have participated in a Tech Cadre.  


2018 - 2019 2019 - 2021 2021 - 2023 


Action Plan: Action Plan: Action Plan: 


○ The district works to set aside funds to 
hire a K-12 Technology Instructional 
Coach to support all teachers to 
integrate tech skills and digital 
citizenship/ Illuminate/ Measures of 
Academic Progress inside their 
curriculum and instructional repertoire 
by creating and facilitating district 
education tech professional 
development sessions as well as working 
with teachers one on one. 


○ The K-12 Technology Instructional Coach 
supports all teachers to integrate tech 
skills  and digital citizenship/ Illuminate/ 
Measures of Academic Progress inside 
their curriculum and instructional 
repertoire 


○ The Technology Instructional Coach 
builds the Tech Cadre Plan working with 
the County Office of Education Tech 
Expert 


○ The Technology Instructional Coach uses 
the teacher tech survey to create and 
facilitate district tech related professional 
development. 


○ The Technology Instructional Coach 
works with professional learning 
communities to use Illuminate and 


○ The K-12 Technology Instructional Coach 
supports all teachers to integrate tech 
skills  and digital citizenship/ Illuminate/ 
Measures of Academic Progress inside 
their curriculum and instructional 
repertoire 


○ The Technology Instructional Coach 
builds the Tech Cadre Plan working with 
the County Office of Education Tech 
Expert 


○ The Technology Instructional Coach uses 
the teacher tech survey to create and 
facilitate district tech related professional 
development. 


○ The Technology Instructional Coach 
works with professional learning 
communities to use Illuminate and 


75/376







8 


Measures of Academic Progress. Measures of Academic Progress. 


○ Begin planning for a “Tech Cadre” 
professional development model to 
begin in 2019-20 


○ Run one elementary and one secondary 
“Tech Cadre” for interested teachers with 
intermediate instructional technology 
skills. Each Tech Cadre will be comprised 
of fifteen teachers, with five professional 
development days during the school year 
focused on building teacher’s 
instructional tech. Teachers will create a 
portfolio of lessons, assignments, 
assessments, etc. based on their learning.  


○ Tech Cadres will continue to build each 
year to include more and more teachers.  


○ Use teacher input from survey to drive 
tech professional development offerings 
(below professional development 
offerings are based on the 2018-19 
Teacher Tech survey feedback) 


○ Consider unique professional 
development opportunities like a "Tech 
Summit" 


○ Provide Tech Coaches and teachers with 
professional development on how to use 
Illuminate for teacher assessments 


○ Develop multi-year professional 
development plan to fully implement 
digital tools and curriculum (stated in 
above part of plan): Google Classroom 
and Google Apps, Illuminate, and 
Measures of Academic Progress / 
Children’s Progress Academic 
Assessment 


○ Merit Academy for teacher training 


○ Use teacher input from survey to drive 
tech professional development offerings 


○ Implement digital tools: Google 
Classroom and Google Apps, Illuminate, 
Measures of Academic Progress 
/Children’s Progress Academic 
Assessment, Scholastic Application 
Management, etc. 


○ Begin transition to digital textbooks 
through Textbook Adoptions with hybrid 
eLearning components 


○ Align Curriculum Master Plan with Tech 
plan for items such as digital textbooks, 
intervention support, etc. 


○ Training and time for teachers to go 
through their grade span Digital 
Citizenship curriculum, Computer Science 
Skills, and Tech Skills (see above table 
from above Curriculum Plan). 


○ Evaluate Tech related professional 
development and adjust as necessary 


○ Use teacher input from survey to drive 
tech professional development offerings 


○ Begin professional development infusion 
through Tech Cadre program or other 
plan.  


Improve Tech Coach Network with a focus on 
classroom technology integration 


○ Tech coaches not only support teachers 
with tech, but do mini trainings for 
interested teachers and/or during staff 
meetings 


Tech Coach Network continues to be a 
professional development time set aside for Tech 
Coaches to learn about new and or refine their 
knowledge of classroom instructional tech  


○ Tech coaches not only support teachers 
with tech, but do mini trainings for 


Tech Coach Network continues to be a 
professional development time set aside for Tech 
Coaches to learn about new and or refine their 
knowledge of classroom instructional tech  


○ Tech coaches not only support teachers 
with tech, but do mini trainings for 


76/376







9 


 interested teachers and/or during staff 
meetings 


○ Tech Coaches are training teachers to use 
Google classroom 


○ Tech Coaches are training 
teachers/professional learning 
communities to use Illuminate for 
common assessments 


interested teachers and/or during staff 
meetings 


○ Tech Coaches are training teachers to use 
Google classroom 


○ Tech Coaches are training 
teachers/professional learning 
communities to use Illuminate for 
common assessments 


On-going Illuminate trainings for all teachers: 
○ Illuminate Assessment Training for 


Directors 
○ Prebuilt Illuminate Reports and Data 


Training 


On-going Illuminate trainings based on survey: 
○ Illuminate Assessment Training for Tech 


Coaches and possibly Santa Cruz 
Instructional Leadership  


○ Prebuilt Illuminate Reports and Data 
Training 


On-going Illuminate trainings based on survey: 
○ Illuminate Assessment Training for all 


teachers 
○ Prebuilt Illuminate Reports and Data 


Training 


Measures of Academic Progress Training for all 
teachers, admin, and Response to Instruction 
Coordinators 


Ongoing Measures of Academic Progress training 
based on survey 


Ongoing Measures of Academic Progress training 
based on survey 


On-going Google training for all teachers based 
on survey: 


○ Google Classroom Training for interested 
teachers 


○ Google Drive organization, Google Docs, 
Google Spreadsheets, Google forms 


On-going Google training for all teachers based 
on 2019-21 surveys: 


○ TBD 


On-going Google training for all teachers based 
on 2021-23 surveys: 


○ TBD 


On-going tech training for the different needs of 
each classified position/role. These trainings will 
be facilitated by the Information Technology 
Department and/or the District Office 
department that oversees the related tech 
training need (e.g., training attendance clerks to 
run and analyze different Illuminate attendance 
reports). 


On-going tech training for the different needs of 
each classified position/role. These trainings will 
be facilitated by the Information Technology 
Department and/or the District Office 
department that oversees the related tech 
training need (e.g., training attendance clerks to 
run and analyze different Illuminate attendance 
reports). 


On-going tech training for the different needs of 
each classified position/role. These trainings will 
be facilitated by the Information Technology 
Department and/or the District Office 
department that oversees the related tech 
training need (e.g., training attendance clerks to 
run and analyze different Illuminate attendance 
reports). 


Computer Science Related Training incorporated 
into Tech Cadres. 


Computer Science Related Training incorporated 
into Tech Cadres. 


Computer Science Related Training incorporated 
into Tech Cadres. 
 


Summer Tech Training based on survey: Summer Tech Training based on 2019-21 surveys: Summer Tech Training based on 2021-23 surveys: 
77/376







10 


○ Mini Merit Summer Training  ○ TBD ○ TBD 


 


3. REGULAR USE OF DATA AND ASSESSMENT 


Data & Assessment 


GOALS: 
By the end of our Five Year Tech Plan, we will… 


● use Measures of Academic Progress assessments in grades 2-10 as one data point to determine student growth and progress towards grade 
level standards proficiency in mathematics and reading.  


● engage all students in grades 2-10 in goal setting using their Rasch UnIt as one measure of academic progress. 
● systematically access and analyze classroom, site, and district-wide data. 
● ensure all data pulled in Illuminate reports are accurate. 
● regularly check, analyze, and use data to make instructional, site, and district decisions. 
● regularly send home data reports to parents on their child’s growth/progress. 
● use Illuminate assessments for all grade levels when appropriate. 


METRICS: Measures of Academic Progress, California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress, English Language Proficiency Assessment of 
California, Curricular Assessments 


● Admin, Teachers, and Students are actively using Measures of Academic Progress data to monitor progress and set goals before and 
after each administration. 


● A data calendar exists for both admin and teachers. It is used to systematize the data we look at and when we look at it throughout 
the year. 


● Data is pulled at least twice each year and analyzed for accuracy. Inaccuracies are resolved quickly. 
● Parents receive at least two data reports each year in addition to report cards that give information regarding their child’s progress 


and growth in regards to Measures of Academic Progress, School Wide Writing, and other district assessments.  


2018 - 2019 2019 - 2021 2021 - 2023 


Action Plan: Action Plan: Action Plan: 


○ All teachers know how to access student 
information and assessment results in 
Illuminate. 


○ All teachers know how to access their 
students’ and class’ Measures of Academic 
Progress and English Language Proficiency 
Assessment of California, California 
Assessment of Student Performance and 
Progress scores. 


○ All teachers actively use Illuminate 
to get state and local data on each 
of the students and their class as a 
whole to inform instruction. 


○ Teachers will use Illuminate to 
create a common or individual 
assessment.  


○ Professional learning communities 
will use common assessment data 


○ All teachers actively use Illuminate to get 
state and local data on each of the students 
and their class as a whole to inform 
instruction. 


○ Teachers will use Illuminate to create a 
common or individual assessment.  


○ Professional learning communities will use 
common assessment data from their 
Illuminate. assessments to impact 


78/376







11 


○ All elementary, Math, and English teachers 
and professional learning communities use 
Measures of Academic Progress data to 
monitor student growth and progress. 


○ Use common department assessments. 
○ Computer available for parent use in the 


main office of each school to access 
Illuminate  


 


from their Illuminate assessments 
to impact instruction. 


○ All teachers know how to access 
their students’ and class’ Measures 
of Academic Progress scores. 


○ All elementary, Math, and English 
teachers and professional learning 
communities use Measures of 
Academic Progress data to monitor 
student growth and progress. 


○ Measures of Academic Progress 
Data is available through illuminate 
for student and parent access 


○ Computer available for parent use 
in the main office of each school to 
access Illuminate  


○ Parents are provided with 
Measures of Academic Progress 
growth data at least once during 
the year. 


instruction 
○ All teachers know how to access their 


students’ and class’ Measures of Academic 
Progress scores. 


○ All teachers and staff in professional 
learning communities engage in a data 
cycle using Measures of Academic Progress 
data to monitor student growth and 
progress. 


○ Computer available for parent use in the 
main office of each school to access 
Illuminate 


○ Parents are provided with Measures of 
Academic Progress growth data at least 
twice during the year. 


 


 


4. INFRASTRUCTURE, HARDWARE, TECHNICAL SUPPORT, SOFTWARE, AND ASSET 


Infrastructure, Hardware, Systems, & Policies 


GOALS:  
By the end of our Five Year Tech Plan, we will have… 


● 21st century technology and the internet capacity to hand this technology in each classroom. 
● 4g Hotspots made available for students who need them for in-home connectivity. 
● full-time onsite Information Technology support for each site. 
● implemented a systematic staff technology refresh plan. 
● improved systems for managing student and staff devices centrally (Mobile Device Management, Active Directory, remote assistance, Umbrella, 


etc). 
● an Information Technology Room (Think Geek Squad) available for staff and students at each school site. 


METRICS: 
● 1:1 in grades 3-12 at each of our schools. 
● SMART 75” TV installed in all classrooms on all sites with screen sharing technology. 
● 10g switched ethernet connection serving all school sites with redundant links to internet. 
● Upgraded Fiber/Copper Cabling for all school sites. 


79/376







12 


● Upgraded Switching for all school sites. 
● Meraki Access Points for each classroom and common outside areas. 
● All staff devices have been refreshed. 


2018 - 2019 2019 - 2021 2021 - 2023 


Action Plan: Action Plan: Action Plan: 


Two year infrastructure assessment: 2016 - 18 
  
Performed an infrastructure assessment and 
identified the essential site improvements: 
  
Procure identified essentials for project funded by 
Bond 18-19: 
  


○ Single Mode Fiber (Local Area Network) 
○ Category 6 Cabling (data ports) 
○ Category 6a Cabling  (Wireless Access 


Points) 
○ Meraki 48/24 PoE Switches (Intermediate 


Distribution Frames) 
○ Wireless Access Points  


 
○ Post E-Rate Wide Area Network Services 


(12/21/18) 
○ Request for Proposal  
○ 10G ASE Wide Area Network 
○ Dual Network Operation Centers - 


Redundancy 
  


Begin Summer of 2019 
  
Deploy high speed wireless networking 
infrastructure that will run parallel to 
existing wired network: 
  


○ Run Single Mode Fiber to new 
Intermediate Distribution Frames  
stacked with Meraki PoE Gigabit 
Switches 


○ Run Cat 6a (10Gbps) copper cabling 
to Meraki Wireless Access Points in 
each classroom 


○ Phase I: Initial setup for Wide Area 
Network at Noc1: 133 Mission St 
(Santa Cruz City Schools District 
Office)  


               Noc2: 401 Old San Jose Rd (Soquel 
               High School) 
 
 
  
 


Develop a roadmap for ongoing infrastructure 
improvement upgrades: 
  


○ As more learning devices attach to our 


network, bandwidth demand will need to 


expand 


○ Currently 6000 devices 
 


2019-20 School year - New Request for Proposal for 
Category 1 E-Rate posted 
Wide Area Network - AT&T Switched Ethernet 
1Gbp-10Gbps 
  
Install new Demarc location at Santa Cruz City 
Schools’ Data Center 
  


○ Controlled Elementary speeds  1 - 2 Gbps 
○ Controlled middle school speeds – 2 – 4 


Gbps 
○ Controlled high school speeds – 3 – 6 Gbps 


Secure ongoing and stable funding sources for 
equipment, Information Technology Support, and 
technology training 


Continue to secure ongoing and stable 
funding sources for equipment, 
Information Technology Support, and 
technology training 


Continue to secure ongoing and stable funding 
sources for equipment, Information Technology 
Support, and technology training 


Increase Information Technology support at sites 
(middle and high have at least a .5 Information 
Technology) 


Maintain Information Technology support 
at sites (middle and high have at least a .5 
Information Technology) 


Maintain Information Technology support at sites 
(middle and high have at least a .5 Information 
Technology) 


80/376







13 


Develop multi-year Chromebooks Refresh 2019-24: 
Keep current technology in students’ hands 


○ Keep current inventory of site 
technology – location, funding 
source, condition 


○ Select Chromebook vendor (2019)  
○ 3-5 year  lease 2500 Chromebooks - 


2019 
○ Investigate Bring Your Own Device 


options ($$$ saver with Google 
Mgmt License installation) 


○ DaaS White Glove Chromebooks 
Service: unbox, enroll in SCCS-STU 
domain, asset tag and organize in 
each site’s organizational unit, wire 
management, and deploy filled 
Chromebook carts to each site 


Implement multi-year plan to keep current 
technology in students’ hands: 


○ Regularly communicate with sites 
regarding technology needs 


○ Summer 2019 replace all 
Generation 1 Chromebook models 
(approximately 2,500) 


○ 3-5 year  lease 2500 Chromebooks - 
2019  


○ 3-4 year lease 1000 Chromebooks - 
2020 


○ Annually replenish peripheral 
equipment for carts (headphones, 
headsets, mice and Liquid Crystal 
Display projectors) as needed 


○ 1:1 Technology pilots (Bring Your 
Own Device) may be implemented 


○ Review and revise Acceptable Use 
Policy for teachers and students 


Ensure that equipment is being replaced at a 1:5 
ratio (entire inventory is replaced within a 5 year 
period) 


○ Regularly communicate with sites regarding 
technology needs 


○ Ongoing replacement of Chromebooks  
○ 3 year lease 1000 Chromebooks - 2021 
○ Annually replenish peripheral equipment 


for carts (headphones, headsets, mice & 
Liquid Crystal Display projectors) as needed 


○ 1:1 Technology pilots (Bring Your Own 
Device) may be implemented 


○ Review and revise Acceptable Use Policy for 
teachers and students 


Determine minimum technology specifications for 
all teaching staff 
 
Develop multi-year cycle for keeping educator 
technology current and up to date: 


○ Office technology 
○ Library technology 
○ Classroom technology 


 
Replace any employee hardware (e.g., laptop, 
projector, etc.) deemed obsolete 


Implement multi-year cycle for keeping 
educator technology current and up to date 
(five year cycle): 


○ Provide and maintain all office 
staff, teachers, and admin with 
adequate laptop or desktop 
computer  


Review and revise multi-year cycle for keeping 
educator technology current and up to date (five 
year cycle): 


○ Provide and maintain all office staff, 
teachers, and admin with adequate laptop 
or desktop computers 


Systems and Policy: 
○ Improve Tech Ticket System 
○ Develop, refine, and codify policies and 


procedures regarding district technology  
 


Systems and Policy: 
○ Continue to refine Tech Ticket 


System 
○ Continue to refine tech related 


district policies and procedures 


Systems and Policy: 
○ Determine if any better systems exist for 


Tech Tickets, and if so, consider piloting 
new system. 


○ Continue to refine tech related district 
policies and procedures 


 


81/376







14 


Standardized Technology Specs for each Classroom/Teacher/Student 


Laptop/Desktop Windows 10, i5 128GB Solid State Drive 8GB (five years old or newer) 


Projector/ Display Epson VS355 – Three Liquid Crystal Display projector 


Printers/Copy Machines All teachers have access to site multi-functional printers that also have the capabilities of copying and scanning to email.  


Chromebook HP 14” Chromebook, Intel Celeron N2940 processor, 32GB Solid State Drive 4GB  


Chromebook/ Cart All teachers have access to a Chromebook cart allowing each student in their class to use a Chromebook 


Document Camera USB connected device, HD (1920x1080) or better resolution 


Google Suite (including 
Google Classroom) 


All teachers have a Google account for email, document sharing, etc. Each year, all teachers have Google Classroom 
automatically set up for them with the year’s class(es) and students. 
All students have a Google account, allowing them access to Gmail, Google Docs/Drive, Google Classroom, etc. 


Illuminate Student 
Information System and 
Data 


All teachers will have an Illuminate account to be used at a minimum for taking daily attendance and grading students. 
Teachers should also use Illuminate as an assessment tool (e.g., common finals, other teacher generated assessments) and 
as a means to get student assessment info (e.g., Measures of Academic Progress, Children’s Progress Academic Assessment, 
California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress /Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium, English Language 
Proficiency Assessment of California, etc.). 


Classroom Audio  


Minimum Technology Specs for Other Technology 


Tablet iPad supporting Device Enrollment Program and Apple Shared Mode  


OPALS  This system is used for all libraries’ resource management 


Wireless Wireless network access is provided by over 250 Aerohive access points in classrooms, offices, and common areas.  Students 
can access the wireless network with their personal devices, where content filtering is provided by Lightspeed’s Relay Bring 
Your Own Device filter.   Access Points are installed as needed in classes and locations where students regularly use 
technology.   


Internet Access Santa Cruz City Schools consists of thirteen schools and eleven sites, all which connect to both a wide area network and a 
local area network. Our wide area network connects all sites via a GigaMAN Ethernet Metropolitan Area Network (GigaMAN 
provided by AT&T) which is a fiber-optic based transport service that offers transparent interconnection of customer local 
area networks. The GigaMAN service provides a dedicated, 1Gb point-to-point connection to all our sites which then share a 


82/376







15 


10Gb bandwidth pipeline out to the Santa Cruz County Office of Education (AT&T 10G).  
 
Layer three switching provides two networks per site to segregate the student and administrator traffic and resources for 
confidentiality purposes. Each classroom and office space currently has two to four data drops per site. Each site’s local area 
network has the capacity to connect our existing devices (chromebooks, laptops, desktop computers, tablets, iPads, printers, 
smartphones, etc.) to the Internet as well as to several shared servers including; application servers, backup servers, 
directory servers, and print servers. All servers are managed and maintained by the Santa Cruz City Schools Information 
Technology Department.  


Infrastructure Infrastructure switching and routing devices are mainly Cisco SG/SF300 switches and a mixture of copper and fiber uplinks.  
There is also a small number of legacy CIsco switches (2960x) still in use.  Site level routing is managed by AT&T on their 
hardware.  Where possible, links between IDFs are gigabit speed, to provide the most throughput possible to all points on 
the network.   


Technical Support The district tech team consists of a director, a lead technology specialist, two systems support specialists, and four 
educational technology specialists. The four ed techs provide support for ten school sites and the district office. Technical 
support for the sites are based on the amount of devices, students and site needs. Our ed techs supply technical support 
eighteen hours per week for our high schools, sixteen hours per week for middle schools, and ten hours per week for 
elementary schools. 
 
Freshdesk, our tech support ticketing system is available at www.sccs.net/it and reviewed regularly by tech support staff on 
school days from 8:00am - 5:00pm. All school sites use the district tech support ticketing system.  


NOTE: We only accept technology donations that meet the minimum specs above. 


 


Existing Hardware: 
Santa Cruz City Schools Information Technology supports over 6000 desktop and mobile devices (laptops, desktops, Chromebooks, 
Chromeboxes, and iPads) connected to our Santa Cruz City Schools local area network. Each site is responsible for purchasing their own 
technologies, however, in the Summer of 2019, the district office will provide the funding for the replacement of 2,500 Chromebooks. 


● 250 Wireless access points 
● 450 teacher/admin laptops  
● 4,700 Chromebooks 


● 800 mb/s current peak daily traffic 
● 300 Tech support tickets per month 
● One Information Technology Room per site


 
 


5. SCCS TECHNOLOGY BUDGET & FUNDING  


Description of Tech Related Budget Item Estimated Cost Funding Source 


1.0 FTE K-12 Instructional Technology Coach $120,000/year TBD 


Increasing the internet infrastructure at each site $4,000,000 Plus Bond 
83/376







16 


Summer 2019 Chromebook Replacements (2,500 Chromebooks - 55%) $750,000 Lease Revenue 


Summer 2020 Chromebook Refresh (1,000 Chromebooks - 25%) $300,000 TBD 


Summer 2021 Chromebook Refresh (1,000 Chromebooks - 25%) ) $300,000 TBD 


Annual Teacher Tech Upkeep and Replacement $138,000 (460 
Chromebooks) 


TBD 


Google Suite Free  None 


Google Classroom and Illuminate Support $12,000 TBD 


Google Diagnostics to maximize system $5,000 TBD 


Fresh Desk: Tech Ticket System $900.00 LCFF Base 


Blackboard (Messaging System) $9,687.00 LCFF Base 


Sharpschool Website Content Management System (13 websites) $8,120 LCFF Base 


Tech Cadres - Professional Development (20 teachers = 1 cadre) $25,000/year = 1 cadre  
$50,000/year = 2 cadres 


TBD 


Summer Mini Merit Professional Development (20 teachers, week long summer 
training) 


$20,000/summer  TBD 


Increasing Information Technology Support to be one Information Technology per 
secondary site and two for all Elementary Sites 


$300,000 (4 FTE) TBD 


 


6. MONITORING IMPACT & PROGRESS OF PLAN IMPLEMENTATION 
The Tech Plan committee will review this plan and monitor its implementation semi-annually at Information Technology /Curriculum 
department collaboration meetings. In addition, we will gather input from groups such as the Tech Coaches, Tech Task Force, 
Principals/Assistant Principals, and the Board. These groups will give input regarding the progress made towards the tech goals outlined in 
this plan and revisions to the plan’s goals and actions will be made annually based on this feedback. Annual surveys to students, parents, 
and teachers will provide additional data to assist us in monitoring our progress. 


Lead Tech Plan Reviewers 


Name Role Site/DO 


Patrick Gaffney  Assistant Superintendent Business Services   Santa Cruz City Schools 


84/376







17 


Curtis Gomez Director of Information Technology Santa Cruz City Schools 


Julia Hodges Director of Curriculum, Instruction, Assessment Santa Cruz City Schools 


Mary Anne Robb Director of Curriculum, Instruction, Assessment Santa Cruz City Schools 


Deb Tracy-Proulx Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education Trustee  Santa Cruz City Schools 


Jon Wells Lead Tech Specialist Santa Cruz City Schools 


Jason Borgen Chief Technology Officer Santa Cruz City Schools County 
Office of Education 


Isai Baltezar  Site Tech Coach Bayview 


Renee Golder  Site Tech Coach Bayview 


Sara Goldfarb Site Tech Coach Branciforte Middle School 


David Norman Site Tech Coach Branciforte Middle School 


Jolene Kemos Site Tech Coach Branciforte Small Schools 


Charlene Oatey Site Tech Coach Delaveaga 


Daniel Bickham Site Tech Coach Gault 


Barbara Lawrence Site Tech Coach Gault 


Bassel Faltas Site Tech Coach Harbor 


Kelly Paulsen Site Tech Coach Harbor 


Martha Dyer Site Tech Coach Mission Hill 


Amine Boutchi Site Tech Coach Santa Cruz High 


Stacy Newsom Kerr Site Tech Coach Santa Cruz High 


Erin Asimoto Site Tech Coach Soquel 


David Kline Site Tech Coach Soquel 


85/376







18 


Renee Figura Site Tech Coach Westlake 


 
 
 


Appendix A 


 


Tech Survey Data 
Student, parent, and staff Technology Surveys were implemented in conjunction with a Grades 3-8 Computer Science for All National 
Science Foundation Grant during the 2018-19 school year. Below are the number of surveys completed and the following pages contain 
data highlights from the surveys. 
 


612 parent surveys were completed 
631 student surveys were completed by 4th and 7th graders 
147 teacher surveys were completed 


86/376







19 


 
 
 
 


87/376







20 


 


88/376







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.9 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 


AGENDA ITEM:  Consultant Services Agreement with Sherrie Lust 


MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 


FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services   


THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Consultant Service Agreement for California Certified Driver Trainer Sherrie Lust to 
provide California Department of Education mandated school bus driver training, and to be 
recognized as the Certified Driver Trainer of Record for district school bus drivers. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools does not currently have a Certified School Bus Driver Trainer, as the 
previous Certified Bus Driver Trainer terminated his contract with the District in early February. 
Sherrie Lust is a Driver Trainer at two other local school districts, and she is capable of serving 
as the replacement Trainer until our Trainer/Lead Driver achieves Certification as a Trainer.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $3,500.00, to be paid from Transportation/Home to School funds. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


Prepared by Emil F. Frates, Transportation Supervisor  
 


89/376







90/376







91/376







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.10 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 


AGENDA ITEM: Mobile Home Site Lease and Maintenance and Security Services 


Agreement at Soquel High School 


MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 


FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services   


THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Mobile Home Site Lease and Maintenance and Security Services Agreement at 
Soquel High School with Jose Tuscano. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
For the past eight years, Jose Tuscano has provided Soquel High School maintenance and 
surveillance services after hours, on weekends, and during school breaks.  Mr. Tuscano lives in 
his mobile home on the Soquel campus as an on-site security person in exchange for rent-free 
living. The proposed agreement extends the current agreement with Mr. Tuscano for five years, 
with an option to renew for five one-year periods. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 


92/376







 


1 


 


MOBILEHOME SITE LEASE  


AND  


MAINTENANCE AND SECURITY SERVICES AGREEMENT  


 


 


This Mobilehome Site Lease and Maintenance and Security Services Agreement (“Agreement”) 


is made this 6th  day of March 2019, by and between the Santa Cruz City Schools (“District” or 


“Lessor”) and Joe (“Lessee” and together with District, the “Parties”).  


 


WHEREAS, Education Code Section 17574 authorizes the District’s Board of Education 


(“Board”) to construct a mobilehome site on the grounds of any District facility or facilities 


maintained by the District and to permit a responsible person or persons to install and occupy a 


mobilehome on such site on terms and conditions acceptable to the Board for purposes of 


maintaining surveillance and reporting illegal or suspicious activities that are observed; and 


 


WHEREAS, Education Code Section 35160 further authorizes the Board to act in any 


manner not in conflict with, inconsistent with, or preempted by any law and which is not 


inconsistent with the District’s purposes; and 


 


WHEREAS, the District owns and operates Soquel High School, located at 401 Old San 


Jose Road, Soquel, California (the “School Site”); and  


 


WHEREAS, the District has constructed a mobilehome site (the “Premises”) on the 


grounds of the Soquel High School, as more particularly depicted on the Site Map attached 


hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference, for the purpose of permitting a 


responsible person or persons to occupy a mobilehome on the Premises for the purposes of 


providing certain maintenance and surveillance services, reporting illegal or suspicious activities 


that are observed at the School Site, and performing other duties as set forth herein; and  


 


WHEREAS, Lessor owns a mobilehome; and  


 


WHEREAS, as consideration for such lease of the Premises, the Parties intend that 


Lessee shall provide certain maintenance and surveillance services to the District, shall report 


illegal or suspicious activities that are observed on the School Site, and shall perform other duties 


as described herein, all under the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 
 


NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and conditions of this Agreement, 


including the Recitals hereof, which are incorporated herein by this reference, the District and 


Lessee agree as follows: 


 


1. Term.  The initial term of this Agreement shall be for a period of five (5) years 


commencing on March 6, 2019, and terminating on February 28, 2024, (“Initial Term”) 


unless earlier terminated pursuant to this Agreement.  This Agreement may be renewed 


by mutual written agreement of the Parties for up to five (5) additional one (1) year 


periods (each a “Renewal Term”) on the same terms and conditions, after which the 


Agreement shall be reapproved by the District’s Governing Board upon such terms and 


conditions as the Parties may agree. 


93/376







 


2 


 


 


2. Lease of Premises.  District hereby leases the Premises to Lessee, subject to the terms and 


conditions set forth in this Agreement.  


 


3. Duties.  As consideration for the lease of the Premises under the terms and conditions set 


forth herein, Lessee shall provide maintenance, surveillance and security services to 


District at the School Site after school and before school hours, on weekends, holidays, 


and during the District’s summer and other recess periods, for so long as Lessee is 


occupying the Premises.  Lessee’s duties shall include, but shall not be limited to, the 


following:  


 


a. Promptly notifying appropriate District personnel and emergency services in case of 


an emergency on the School Site; 


 


b. Promptly notifying appropriate District personnel and law enforcement of 


unauthorized or illegal activities on the School Site; 


 


c. Providing custodial services for the School Site as directed by District;  


 


d. Closing, locking, and otherwise securing gates and locking doors as needed outside of 


normal School Site and custodial hours;  


 


e. Patrolling the School Site, performing security checks, and maintaining visibility at 


the School Site as directed by District; and 


 


f. Performing other maintenance and security duties at the School Site as may be 


reasonably requested by the District. 


 


4. No Fee.  Lessee shall pay no fee, license or rent to District for use and occupancy of the 


Premises by Lessee; Lessee’s sole consideration to District shall be the performance of 


the duties set forth in this Agreement.  Lessee will perform all required duties in a 


professional and a competent manner, and in compliance with all applicable law.   


 


5. Use and Occupancy; No Subleasing.  Lessee shall use the Premises for residential 


purposes only.  No structures or improvements other than those presently on or about the 


Premises shall be placed on the Premises without the prior written consent of the District. 


Lessee shall not sublease the Premises or permit any person or persons other than Lessee, 


Lessee’s spouse or Lessee’s children, to occupy the Premises without prior written 


consent of District. Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, Lessee 


shall surrender the Premises in the same condition as received, ordinary wear and tear 


excepted.  


6. Utilities.   


 


a. No failure on the part of District to provide, or any stoppage of, electricity, water, or 


sewer services resulting from any cause whatsoever shall make District liable in any 


respect to any person, property or business, or be construed as an eviction of Lessee, 


94/376







 


3 


 


or entitle Lessee to any relief from Lessee’s obligations under this Agreement. 


District shall make its best effort to restore any interruption of electricity, water, or 


sewer services, and Lessee shall not be responsible for the cost of any repair 


necessary for such restoration unless the interruption was the result of Lessee’s action 


or inaction.  


 


b. Lessee shall be responsible for the hook-up of telephone, internet, and cable or 


satellite television services to Lessee’s mobilehome.   


 


c. Lessee shall pay for all utilities, including but not limited to electricity, water, sewer, 


waste removal, telephone, internet, and cable or satellite television services used on 


the Premises.  


 


7. Maintenance.  Lessee is responsible for the general maintenance and care of the 


Premises.  Lessee shall maintain the Premises in good condition, reasonable wear and 


tear excepted.  Lessee shall not commit or suffer to be committed any waste in or upon 


the Premises.  Should Lessee damage the Premises beyond normal wear and tear, Lessee 


shall, within ten (10) days of receipt of an invoice, pay District the cost of the repairs. 


District shall be responsible for major maintenance and repair to the Premises, except to 


the extent major maintenance or repair, other than normal wear and tear, is required as a 


result of Lessee’s failure to care for and maintain the Premises.  For purposes of this 


Agreement, “major maintenance” shall be limited to repair or regrading of the 


mobilehome pad or repair or replacement of exterior or underground electrical, gas, 


sewer, water, or plumbing lines, and such groundskeeping services as are normally 


provided for the School Site.  


 


8. Vehicles.  Lessee shall be limited to keeping not more than two (2) personal vehicles on 


the Premises, parked in areas identified by the District.  All vehicles must be maintained 


in an operable condition and registered with the Department of Motor Vehicles, and shall 


not exhibit any visible writing or image deemed objectionable by the District. 


 


9. Compliance with Law.  Lessee shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, local, and 


District laws, statutes, ordinances, policies, regulations, rules, and requirements 


(“Laws”), whether those Laws are now in force or are subsequently enacted.  The Lessee 


shall not use the Premises or permit anything to be done in or about the Premises that will 


in any way conflict with any Laws, obstruct or interfere with the rights of the District or 


the District’s use of its property, or injure the District.  The Lessee shall not cause, 


maintain, or permit any nuisance in or about the Premises.  The Premises shall be non-


smoking and no smoking shall be allowed in or on District property. 


10. Animals/Pets. All animals or pets to be housed on the Premises must be approved in 


advance by the District.  All domestic pets must be current on all required vaccinations at 


all times during the term of this Agreement. Lessee shall provide vaccination records to 


District upon request. No animals are permitted on the School Site campus while students 


are present.   


95/376







 


4 


 


11. District Entry.  District shall have the right to enter the Premises at all reasonable hours to 


inspect and/or repair the Premises with twenty four (24) hours’ notice when Lessee is at 


home.  District shall have the right to enter the Premises at any time in the event of an 


emergency.  The Lessee waives any claim for damages for inconvenience to Lessee, any 


loss of use or quiet enjoyment of the Premises, related to District’s entry for the purposes 


identified in this Section. 


 


12. Improvements.  The Lessee shall not make any alterations, additions, or improvements 


(together, “Improvements”) to the Premises without the written approval of the District.   


Any Improvements to the Premises made by the Lessee shall be paid for by the Lessee, 


and shall be in accordance with all applicable law.  The Lessee shall keep the Premises 


free and clear of any liens arising out of any work performed, materials furnished, or 


obligations incurred with respect to any Improvements.  Upon written request of the 


District prior to the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, Lessee will 


remove any and all Improvements to the Premises, at its own cost, and restore the 


Premises to its original condition.  Any Improvement to the Premises that the Lessee does 


not remove prior to vacating the Premises shall vest in the District. 


 


13. Damage/Destruction of Premises. If a portion or all of the Premises are damaged or 


destroyed, partially or totally, from any cause whatsoever, then at its sole option, District 


may either: 


 


a. repair, restore, rebuild, or replace the Premises to a condition comparable to that 


existing immediately prior to such damage or destruction and this Agreement shall 


remain in full force and effect; or 


 


b. decline to repair, restore, rebuild, or replace the Premises and so terminate this 


Agreement as of that date. 


 


District shall give Lessee written notice of which option it has selected under this 


Section. 


 


14. Absences. Lessee shall notify the School Site Principal during the school year, or the 


Assistant Superintendent for Business Services during summer or other District recesses 


when Lessee will be absent from the Premises for more than two (2) days.   


 


 


15. Insurance.  Lessee, at Lessee’s own expense, shall carry personal liability insurance and 


property damage insurance applicable to the Premises in such amounts and with such 


companies as District shall approve, causing District to be a named as an additional 


insured under such liability and property damage insurance policies.  Lessee shall furnish 


to District certificates of such liability and property damage insurance policies.  Upon 


District’s request, Lessee shall immediately furnish to District copies of the policies.  


 


16. Indemnification.  Lessee shall indemnify, defend and save the District, its Governing 


Board, members of its Governing Board, officers, agents, employees, and students, 


96/376







 


5 


 


harmless from any and all claims, damages, losses, expenses, causes of actions, and 


demands, including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, whether to persons or property, 


incurred in connection with or in any manner arising out of (1) Lessee’s performance of 


the duties contemplated by this Agreement; and (2) any act or thing done upon the School 


Site or Premises by the Lessee, Lessee’s spouse or children, or any Lessee visitor or 


invitee. 


 


17. Holding Over.  Lessee shall not remain in possession of the Premises after the expiration 


or termination of this Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Lessee holds 


over, such holding over shall not be deemed to extend the term or renew this Agreement, 


but Lessee’s continued occupation of the Premises shall continue as a month-to-month 


tenancy, during which holding over period, Lessee shall pay to District monthly rent in 


the amount of $______, unless a different rental amount is mutually agreed to by the 


Parties.  Any holdover by Lessee requires the Lessee to comply with all terms of this 


Agreement.  A holdover by the Lessee shall not trigger any additional term. The District 


shall have the right to remove the Lessee and Lessee’s spouse, children, and personal 


property at any time after the expiration of the term or termination of this Agreement.  


The provisions of this Section shall not be deemed to limit or constitute a waiver of any 


other rights or remedies of District provided herein or at law.  The District, at its 


discretion, may immediately remove, store at Lessee’s expense, and/or sell, any personal 


property remaining on the Premises after the expiration or earlier termination of this 


Agreement, unless arrangements for its removal, storage or disposal are made by the 


Lessee and approved by the District in writing. 


 


18. Termination.   


 


a. This Agreement may be terminated without cause upon one hundred and twenty (120) 


days written notice of termination given by either Party.  Upon termination of this 


Agreement, District shall have the right to re-enter the Premises and take immediate 


possession thereof and to exclude Lessee and Lessee’s spouse and children therefrom, 


in the manner provided by law. 


 


b. If Lessee fails to fully keep and perform any of the terms, covenants, and conditions 


of this Agreement by them to be kept and performed, then at the option of District, 


this Agreement shall, upon notice to Lessee, immediately cease and terminate and 


District shall have the right to re-enter said Premises and take immediate possession 


thereof and to exclude Lessee and Lessee’s spouse and children therefrom, in the 


manner provided by law.  


 


19. Miscellaneous Terms.   


 


a. Amendment.  The terms of this Agreement shall only be modified or amended by 


written agreement signed by the Parties. 


 


97/376







 


6 


 


b. Assignment.  Lessee may not assign any rights under this Agreement or sublet any 


portion of the Premises.  Any assignment or sublease by Lessee shall be void, and at 


the option of District, shall immediately terminate this Agreement.   


 


c. Board Approval/Ratification.  This Agreement confers no legal or equitable right 


until it is approved or ratified by the Santa Cruz city Schools Board of Education at a 


lawfully conducted public meeting. 


 


d. Conflict with Law.  In the event any conflict or ambiguity between this Agreement 


and state or federal laws or regulations, the latter shall prevail. 


 


e. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall 


constitute an original of the Agreement.  Facsimile signature pages transmitted to 


other Parties to this Agreement shall be deemed equivalent to original signatures on 


counterparts. 


 


f. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and 


understanding between the Parties.  There are no understandings, agreements, 


representations or warranties, expressed or implied, not specified in this Agreement. 


 


g. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted 


under the laws of the State of California applicable to instruments, persons, 


transactions and subject matter which have legal contracts and relationships 


exclusively within the State of California.  Any action or proceeding seeking any 


relief under or with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior 


Court of the State of California for the County of Santa Cruz, subject to a motion for 


transfer of venue. 


 


h. Headings.  Any headings in this Agreement are included only as a matter of 


convenience and for reference and in no way define the scope of extent of this 


Agreement or the construction of any provision. 


 


i. Notices. Any notice, request, demand, approval, consent, instruction or other 


communication to be given to any Party hereunder shall be delivered by personal 


service, regular mail, certified mail, overnight mail with proof of delivery, facsimile 


with proof of transmission, or by email provided receipt is acknowledged as follows: 


 


To Lessee:      To District: 


 


Name: [FILL] Santa Cruz City Schools 


Address: [FILL] District Office 


Telephone: [FILL] 133 Mission St, Suite 100 


Facsimile: [FILL] Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


Email: [FILL] Telephone: (831) 429-3410 


Attention; [FILL] Facsimile: [FILL] 


 Email: [FILL] 


98/376







 


7 


 


 Attention: [FILL] 


 


The addresses for the purposes of this Section may be changed by giving written 


notice of such change in the manner provided herein for giving notice.  Unless and 


until such written notice is received, the last address and addressee as stated by 


written notice, or as provided herein if no written notice of change has been sent or 


received, shall be deemed to continue in effect for all purposes hereunder. 


 


j. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or 


unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate 


or render unenforceable any other provision of this Agreement. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this instrument to be executed the 


day and year first shown above. 


 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 


By:________________________________________ 


 [Name] 


           [Title] 


 


  


 LESSEE   


 


By: _____________________________________________ 


 [Name] 


99/376







100/376







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.11 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 


AGENDA ITEM: Agreement for Special Services – Budget Review 


MEETING DATE: March 6, 2019 


FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services    


THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Agreement with School Services of California, Inc. for Special Services – Budget 
Review. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At the request of the Board, as part of the District's strategic review of the General Fund, the 
District is partnering with School Services to perform an independent assessment of the 
District's general fund budget.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$8,800 plus direct expenses, LCFF  Base (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


  
 


101/376







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: CRW Industries, Inc. Change Order #1 to Natural Bridges 
Modernization and Repairs Lighting Retrofit Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve CRW Industries, Inc. change order #1 to the Natural Bridges modernization and repairs 
lighting retrofit project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order for the installation of lighting trim rings serves to correct a hidden pre-
existing condition that was not apparent during the initial development of the contract. The 
previously approved contract amount was $145,000.00, and the new total contract, including 
this change order, will be $146,473.84. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1     $1,473.84, (1.01% increase to the contract), Measure B Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


102/376







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1. 


 


103/376







CRW INDUSTRIES
5346 Scotts Valley Drive
Scotts Valley, CA 95066


133 Mission Str. Suite 100
Santa Cruz, CA 95060


February 19, 2019


Increase in project cost


104/376







105/376







106/376







107/376







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Montano Plumbing Inc. Contract for Underground Fire Service at 
Mission Hill Middle School for the Site Infrastructure Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Montano Plumbing Inc. contract for underground fire service at Mission Hill Middle 
School for the site infrastructure project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This contract consists of the replacement/relocation and installation of a new six-inch 
underground fire service at Mission Hill Middle School. This work is needed due to a severe leak 
in the fire line. Due to the urgent nature of this project, a local reliable contractor was selected 
using maintenance project criteria which does not require formal bidding. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$89,968.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.51% of the overall site budget 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


108/376







109/376







110/376







111/376







112/376







113/376







114/376







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Swinerton Builders Lease-Leaseback Agreement Amendment for 
Soquel High Modernization Phase 1 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve additional sublease contract for the lease-leaseback agreement with Swinerton 
Builders for modernization at Soquel High School.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This is an additional sublease contract for the Swinerton lease-leaseback agreement. This 
contract will serve for converting the old portion of the district office in building 300 back to 
functional classrooms, and a new 20-foot wide fire access road and turnaround as required by 
local fire authority at Soquel High School.  The contract also includes updates to parking and the 
path of travel between the 200 and 300 buildings in compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$609,632.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 1.74% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


115/376







116/376







117/376







118/376







119/376







120/376







121/376







122/376







123/376







124/376







125/376







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: XL Construction Corporation Contract for Asbestos and Lead 
Abatement in the Harbor High School Weight Room  


      
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve XL Construction Corporation contract for asbestos and lead abatement in the Harbor 
High School weight room.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This contract consists of the abatement of asbestos and lead in the Harbor High School weight 
room and the existing pool equipment room. This is required prior to the demolition of the 
building in preparation for the new swimming pool.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$41,624.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.13% of the overall site budget 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


126/376







127/376







128/376







129/376







130/376







131/376







132/376







 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Local Control Accountability Plan Update: Foster Youth Services 
      
MEETING DATE: March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:   Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools partners with the Santa Cruz County Office of Education to provide a 
system of support for K-12 foster youth.  The FosterEd case management model has been in 
place for the past six years. FosterEd Liaisons serve as advocates for our foster youth and 
partner with school teams to coordinate appropriate support measures at home and school. 
 
Foster Youth Services Coordinating Program  
Targeted Students: all foster youth grades K-12 
Twenty five students have been served to date in 18-19  
 
Program purpose and goals 
FosterEd is a part of Santa Cruz County of Education’s Foster Youth Services Coordinating 
Program. The mission is to increase the educational outcomes of foster youth.  Each foster 
youth is supported by an education team, Education Champion, and education plan, based on 
identified strengths and areas of need. 
 
Strengths of the program 
All Santa Cruz County Schools foster youth are assigned a liaison to monitor school progress. 
The Liaison is especially important as students often transition between schools. The program 
has assisted our school teams in setting goals with students and increasing participation of 
foster parents in school activities and educational conferences. Students in the FosterEd 
program show increases in attendance and have a high rate of completing their educational 
goals.  
 
Program needs for improvement 
The program continues a focus on strengthening the communication among multiple team 
members as well as increasing school stability for foster youth. 
 
Process for developing program 
The program was developed in partnership with the County Office of Education, the Santa Cruz 
County Family and Children Services, The Dependency Court of Santa Cruz, Court Appointed 


133/376







 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


Special Advocates and the National Center for Foster Youth Law. Current partners include these 
agencies, as well as Children’s Behavioral Health, Independent Living Program, Cabrillo 
Guardian Scholars and the Transition Age Youth Advisory Board. 
 
Evaluation Criteria  


FosterEd Liaisons gather multiple data points to measure effectiveness of support. Examples 
include grade point average (high school and middle school students), attendance, educational 
and social-emotional goal progress, suspensions, and school enrollment history. FosterEd 
contracts with external evaluators to track program outcomes.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$10,000  LCFF Supplemental (Restricted) 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 


 
 


Prepared by Greg O’Meara, Director of Student Services 
 


134/376







Local Control Accountability 
Plan Update:


Foster Youth Services


March 6, 2019


135/376







Statewide Educational Foster Youth Data 


Invisible Achievement Gap (2013)


Students in foster care are...


• Consistently among the lowest performing subgroups in Math and 


English


• More likely to be enrolled in the lowest performing schools


• Have significantly higher rates of absenteeism and disciplinary referrals 


than their peers


• Twice as likely to be designated with a disability, and five times more 


likely to be classified with an emotional disturbance


• Had the highest dropout rates and were less likely to graduate from high 


school than other students (58% compared to 84%)


• Attend a four-year college at a significantly lower rate (fewer than 3%)
136/376







Santa Cruz City Schools Foster Youth


• 2017 Census Day Count: 33


• 2018 Census Day Count: 23


• Current (Feb. 2019): 23


• Total served (18-19): 25


*Total school-age foster youth currently enrolled 


in Santa Cruz County schools: 168


137/376







SCCS-Foster Youth Services Collaboration


• Memorandum of Understanding


• LCFF Supplemental Funding Dedicated from 
Each Participating District


• FosterED Liasons work with students, families 
and school staff


• Student Services Director and Social Workers 
serve on Foster Youth School Coordinated 
Programs Executive Advisory Council


138/376







FosterEd Model


139/376







FosterEd’s Programmatic Elements


• Ensuring each youth in foster care is supported by an 


education team


• Ensuring each youth in foster care is supported by an 


educational champion


• Conducting a proactive assessment of the student’s 


educational strengths and needs


• Developing an educational case plan based on that 


assessment of strengths and needs


• An assigned Ed Liaison for support every step of the way
140/376







FosterEd Outcomes


• Since 2013, FosterEd has served over 500 students


• Students in FosterEd show increases in attendance and 


grade point average


• FosterEd students have a high rate of achieving their 


educational goals


• FosterEd students in Santa Cruz County have a higher 


high school completion/graduation than the state average


• Education team meetings are well-attended by


school staff members, families and youth
141/376







Questions?


142/376







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 
                         


    


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  2018-2019 Second Interim Financial Report 
  
MEETING DATE: March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the 2018-2019 Second Interim Report with a Positive Certification.    
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board receives three statutorily mandated reports of the financial status of the District 
during the year: 


 
Report 


 
       Period Covered 


 
Report to Board by 


First Interim        7/1/18 - 10/31/18 12/15/18 


             Second Interim        7/1/18 - 01/31/19 03/15/19 


             Year-End        7/1/18 - 06/30/19  09/15/19 


 
The 2018-2019 Second Interim Financial Report is the final major review of the 2018-2019 fiscal 
year.  This report presents a comparison between the Original Budget, the Board Approved 
Operating Budget, revenue projections, expenditure projections, and projections of other 
sources of funding.  Projected ending fund balances are presented for all funds.  A Multi-Year 
projection is provided. 
 
The Second Interim Financial Report includes financial activity through January 31, 2019.  
Modifications of projected revenues and expenditures since the First Interim Report have been 
incorporated into the District’s Working Budget.  These adjustments are based upon available 
revenue projections provided by Federal, State and Local Governments.  Salary and Benefit 
expenditures are projected using the Position Control Module provided by the Santa Cruz Office 
of Education.  All other expenditure projections are a function of actual trends and encumbered 
expenditures. 
 
A positive certification is assigned when the District projections indicate that it will meet its 
financial obligations for the current and two subsequent fiscal years. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Although this report represents the fiscal status of the District, there is no fiscal impact from 
this action. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.  


143/376







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


2018-19 Second Interim Report


Board Presentation – March 6, 2019


144/376







1st Interim vs. 2nd Interim


Revenues
 LCFF Sources decrease of $8,489


 An increase to LCFF sources


 An increase in in-lieu to charters transfer


 Decrease in LCFF Supplemental due to decrease in unduplicated count


 Federal Revenue increased $25,900


 State Revenue increased $715,565


o Lottery $86,512, Sp Ed Mental Health $250,063, Low Performing Students 


Block Grant $326,044, Classified Professional Development Block Grant 


$40,629, Mandated Cost $12,317


 Local Revenue increased $604,369


 Local Revenue increases were driven by increases in Leases/Rentals 


$102,988, Interest $215,000, Donations/Grants $448,495, Sp Ed (162,114)


145/376







Changes in Revenue


2018-2019


1st Interim 2nd Interim Change


LCFF Sources $64,679,314 $64,670,825 ($8,489)


Federal Programs $3,773,671 $3,799,571 $25,900


State Programs $5,454,132 $6,169,697 $715,565 


Local Programs $8,228,331 $8,832,700 $604,369 


Total Revenue $82,135,448 $83,472,793 $1,337,345


146/376







1st Interim vs. 2nd Interim


Expenditures


 Certificated Salaries decreased $31,659


 Associated with a variety of position control changes


 Classified Salaries increased $54,217


 Mainly attributed to extra work agreement, substitute costs, 


and overtime.


 Benefits increased $191,503


 Mainly attributed to changes associated with health and 


welfare increases


147/376







1st Interim vs. 2nd Interim


Expenditures (Continued)


 Books and Supplies decreased $525,210 (Correlates with 


decrease in LCFF supplemental funding and other trend 


reductions)


 Contracted Services and Other Operating Expenses 


increased $266,645


 Special Ed $288K


 Facilities ($14K)


 LCFF Supplemental ($20K)


 Lottery $4K


 Capital Outlay increased $295,053


 Mainly attributed to Drops Grant


 Transfers Out increased $14,000
148/376







Changes in Expenditures


2018-2019


1st Interim 2nd Interim Change


Certificated $37,485,922 $37,454,263 ($31,659) 


Classified $12,763,805 $12,818,022 $54,217


Benefits $21,764,403 $21,955,906 $191,503 


Books/Supplies $5,825,013 $5,299,804 ($525,210) 


Services $10,370,172 $10,636,817 $266,645


Capital Outlay/Other $443,517 $738,570 $295,053 


Other Outgo $11,420 $25,420 $14,000 


Total Expenditures $88,664,252 $88,928,802 $264,550 


149/376







Changes in Fund Balance


2018-2019


1st Interim 2nd Interim Variance


Beg Fund Balance $14,323,862 $14,323,862 $0 


Deficit Spending ($5,328,804) ($4,302,177) ($1,026,627)


Ending Fund Balance $8,995,058 $10,021,685 $1,026,627


Restricted $56,233 $50,212 ($6,021)


3% Reserve $2,668,890 $2,706,783 $37,893 


Assigned $6,141,922 $7,149,443 $1,007,521


Undesignated $26,660 $13,914 ($12,746)


% Unrestricted Reserve 10.05% 11.20% 1.15%


150/376







Multi-Year Projection


Key Revenue Assumption Changes


2018-2019


 Fully funded LCFF


 Decrease in LCFF Supplemental Funding associated with decreases in 


unduplicated counts


 Increased Regional Program costs for Special Ed impacts AB602 revenue


 Reflects January 2019 Governor’s Proposal effecting LCFF and STRS.


Key Expenditure Assumption Changes
 Reflects reductions associated with declining enrollment


 Reflects adjustments associated with trends in current year for non salaries and 


benefits categories


 Reflects increases associated with anticipated parcel and general election costs


151/376







Multi-Year Projection
Santa Cruz City Schools


Multi Year Projection


2018-2019 2nd Interim Final


2/28/2019


2018/19 2019/20 2020/21


Projected Projected Projected


Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total


Revenue 


LCFF Sources 64,670,825 0 64,670,825 66,395,790 0 66,395,790 67,830,459 0 67,830,459 


Federal Revenue 0 3,799,571 3,799,571 0 3,396,893 3,396,893 0 3,396,893 3,396,893 


State Revenue 2,412,119 3,757,578 6,169,697 1,263,635 3,297,531 4,561,166 1,263,635 3,318,223 4,581,858 


Local Revenue 7,121,509 1,711,191 8,832,700 7,089,842 1,731,774 8,821,616 7,058,393 1,726,375 8,784,768 


Total Revenue 74,204,453 9,268,340 83,472,793 74,749,267 8,426,198 83,175,465 76,152,487 8,441,491 84,593,978 


0 0 0 


Expenditures 0 0 0 


Certificated 30,308,219 7,146,044 37,454,263 29,768,453 7,163,533 36,931,986 30,066,306 7,266,835 37,333,141 


Classified 8,824,664 3,993,358 12,818,022 8,926,875 4,040,126 12,967,001 9,105,413 4,120,929 13,226,341 


Benefits 15,298,173 6,657,733 21,955,906 16,071,462 6,971,351 23,042,813 16,997,791 7,284,687 24,282,478 


Books & Supplies 1,478,980 3,820,824 5,299,804 960,622 1,926,154 2,886,776 879,116 1,891,776 2,770,892 


Services, Other Ops 5,237,193 5,399,624 10,636,817 5,632,979 5,254,116 10,887,095 5,658,960 5,254,116 10,913,076 


Capital Outlay 188,980 549,590 738,570 50,000 0 50,000 50,000 0 50,000 


Other Outgo 25,420 0 25,420 25,420 0 25,420 25,420 0 25,420 


Direct/Indirect Support (1,099,432) 1,099,432 0 (1,099,432) 1,099,432 0 (1,099,432) 1,099,432 0 


Total Expenditures 60,262,197 28,666,605 88,928,802 60,336,379 26,454,712 86,791,091 61,683,574 26,917,775 88,601,348 


Excess/Deficiency 13,942,256 (19,398,264) (5,456,009) 14,412,888 (18,028,514) (3,615,626) 14,468,914 (18,476,284) (4,007,370)


Other Financing 0 


Transfers In 1,500,000 0 1,500,000 1,350,000 0 1,350,000 1,168,000 0 1,168,000 


Transfers Out 346,168 0 346,168 300,000 0 300,000 300,000 0 300,000 


Contributions To Restr. (16,284,149) 16,284,149 0 (18,447,590) 18,447,590 0 (18,928,654) 18,928,654 0 


Transfers/Contributions (15,130,317) 16,284,149 1,153,832 (17,397,590) 18,447,590 1,050,000 (18,060,654) 18,928,654 868,000 


0 0 0 


Net Inc/Dcr to Fund Balance (1,188,061) (3,114,116) (4,302,177) (2,984,702) 419,076 (2,565,626) (3,591,741) 452,370 (3,139,370)


Beg Fund Balance 11,188,118 3,135,744 14,323,862 10,000,057 21,628 10,021,685 7,015,355 440,704 7,456,059 


Audit Adjustments 0 0 0 


Ending Fund Balance 10,000,057 21,628 10,021,685 7,015,355 440,704 7,456,059 3,423,615 893,075 4,316,689 


Legally Restricted/Designated 101,352 50,212 151,564 101,352 440,704 542,056 101,352 893,075 994,427 


Unrestricted Reserve:


Reserve 3% Econ. Uncert. 2,678,249 2,678,249 2,612,733 2,612,733 2,667,040 2,667,040 


Reserve for 19-20 Deficit 2,984,702 2,984,702 0 0 0 0 


Reserve for 20-21 Deficit 3,591,741 3,591,741 3,591,741 3,591,741 0 0 


Parcel Tax Carryover Reserve 572,998 572,998 572,988 572,988 572,988 572,988 


Undesignated 71,016 (28,583) 42,432 136,542 136,542 82,234 82,234 


% Unrestricted Reserve 11.20% 8.06% 3.85%


152/376







Measure I – Expiration June 2021


 If Measure I is not renewed, the District will need to make 


expenditure reductions equivalent to the annual funds that 


are received for the parcel tax.


 Total Annual Funds Received: $1,277,978


 Measure I Funds Pay for the following Grades 9-12:


 Librarians


 Librarians/Media Assistants


 Media Textbook Clerks


 OPALS


 Counselors


 Counseling Secretary


153/376







Measure J – Expiration June 2021


 If Measure J is not renewed, the District will need to make 


expenditure reductions equivalent to the annual funds that 


are received for the parcel tax.


 Total Annual Funds Received: $1,331,355


 Measure J Funds Pay for the following Grades K-8:


 Librarians


 Librarians/Media Assistants


 Counselors


 Art Teachers


 Music Teachers


 Music Books, Supplies, Equipment, and Repairs


154/376







155/376







156/376







157/376







158/376







159/376







160/376







161/376







162/376







163/376







164/376







165/376







166/376







167/376







168/376







169/376







170/376







171/376







172/376







173/376







174/376







175/376







176/376







177/376







178/376







179/376







180/376







181/376







182/376







183/376







184/376







185/376







186/376







187/376







188/376







189/376







190/376







191/376







192/376







193/376







194/376







195/376







196/376







197/376







198/376







199/376







200/376







201/376







202/376







203/376







204/376







205/376







206/376







207/376







208/376







209/376







210/376







211/376







212/376







213/376







214/376







215/376







216/376







217/376







218/376







219/376







220/376







221/376







222/376







223/376







224/376







225/376







226/376







227/376







228/376







229/376







230/376







231/376







232/376







233/376







234/376







235/376







236/376







237/376







238/376







239/376







240/376







241/376







242/376







243/376







244/376







245/376







246/376







247/376







248/376







249/376







250/376







251/376







252/376







253/376







254/376







255/376







256/376







257/376







258/376







259/376







260/376







261/376







262/376







263/376







264/376







265/376







266/376







267/376







268/376







269/376







270/376







271/376







272/376







273/376







274/376







275/376







276/376







277/376







278/376







279/376







280/376







281/376







282/376







283/376







284/376







285/376







286/376







287/376







288/376







289/376







290/376







291/376







292/376







293/376







294/376







295/376







296/376







297/376







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Bond Budget Update 
 
MEETING DATE: March 6, 2019  
 
FROM: Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Mark Bartos of Bartos Architecture will present an update on the Bond Measures A and B 
budgets. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Approximately $3,000 Measure A & B (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 
 


298/376







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS |  BOARD MEET ING – 16  JANUARY 2019


Program Budgets and Expenditure Summary


0 6  M a r c h  2 0 1 9 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


299/376







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      Expenditures


$140,000,000


Program Snapshot


Measure A: High Schools


$68,000,000Measure B: Elementary Schools


Resource


Expenditures
thru Jan 2019


$29,524,521


$8,324,333


$208,000,000Measure A|B Summary $37,848,855


The values indicated here are based upon the Bartos Architecture program management 
database, and indicate total expenditures throughout the program. 


These values are periodically reconciled with District records.


Remaining
Resource


$110,475,479


$59,675,667


$170,151,145


Measure A


21.1 %


Measure B


12.2%


Measure A|B


18.2%


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y06 March 2019
300/376







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      Terminology


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y06 March 2019


Resource:   Funds available to site (including bond and state funds)


Allocation: Budgetary allocation based on latest cost estimate, and prioritizations with site teams


Expenditure to Date: Expenditures for a given project from November 2016 thru November 2018.


Projected FY 18|19: Expenditures anticipated (predicted: not modified) 01 July through 30 June.


Percent Complete: Proportion of amount actually expended divided by the total site resource.


Multi Project Overhead: 5% of site resource for efforts not related to a specific project.


Utility Infrastructure: Site (outside of buildings) utilities. Drainage, Gas, Water, Electrical.


Multi Project Overhead
Project xyz
Project xyz
Utility Infrastructure


$
$
$
$


$
$
$
$


Allocation


$ TotalAllocated so far


Projected
FY 18|19


$
$
$
$


Expenditures
To Date


Current Resource     $xx,xxx,xxx


$ Total $ Total


A


B C DE % Complete


F


G


A


B


C


D


E


F


G


301/376







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures


Multi Project Overhead
Parking Lot Improvements
Re-Roofing
Street Presence
Music Building
Classroom Mod Phase 1
MPR Modernization
Classroom Mod Phase 2
Admin/Library Improvements
Utility Infrastructure
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements


$865,945
$308,179


$1,188,803
$749,889
$917,815


$3,223,385
$920,967


$6,764,733
$1,240,845


N/A
$225,000
$300,000


$91,185
$19,410


$1,590,361
N/A


$78,879
$20,764


N/A
N/A
N/A


$7,445
$20,853


N/A


$1,828,898


Allocation


$16,705,561Allocated so far


Projected
FY 18|19


$120,829
$280,392


$110,639
$320,483
$475,581
$135,880


-
-


N/A
$142,105
$189,474


$1,775,383


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Branciforte MS  Current Resource     $17,318,892 Expenditures
thru Jan 2019


10.6% (Total Expenditures to Jan 31 2019)


06 March 2019
302/376







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures


Mission Hill Middle School   Current Site Resource   $18,353,153


Multi-Project Overhead
Hardscape|Landscape (Front Lawn)
Roof Replacement Ph 1
Roof Replacement Ph 2
Mod Ph 1 (perm walls, hvac)
Mod Ph 2 (main building)
New Classroom Building
Gym Mod Ph 1 (locker rooms)
Gym Mod Ph 2 (Reconfigure)
Utility Infrastructure
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements
Exterior Site Security (Fencing)


$917,658
$1,089,956
$1,528,613


$871,965
$243,604


$1,360,000
$9,000,000


$60,502
TBD
TBD


$230,000
$375,000
$100,000


$133,062
$532,100


$1,507,289
$8,305


$43,446
$150
N/A


$100,350
$9,353


$10,612
$20,853


N/A
N/A


$2,365,519$15,777,298Allocated so far


$128,045
$557,856


$21,324
$161,913
$114,122
$467,339
$565,332


$20,027
TBD
TBD


$104,211
$236,842


TBD


$2,377,011


Allocation
Projected
FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y06 March 2019


Expenditures
thru Jan 2019


12.9%(Total Expenditures to Jan 31 2019) 


303/376







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures


Harbor High School       Current Resource  $29,789,743


Multi Project Overhead
Athletic Fields Improvements
Pool and Weight Room Replacement
Music/Theater Art Modernization
Classroom Modernization
Re-roof
Student Lockers
New Electrical Service
Tennis Court Remodel
Utility Infrastructure
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements


$ 1,489,487
$9,476,400
$9,640,728
$2,750,000
$2,415,976
$2,100,000


$261,017
$369,315
$221,362


TBD
$460,000
$575,000


$81,592
$9,861,609


$803,141
$87,134


$7,548
$2,093,765


$199,207
$87,621


$206,370
$61,841
$20,853


N/A


$13,510,680Allocated so far


$207,835
$497,193


$7,156,265
$875,239


TBD
$215,333
$199,685
$301,553
$149,389


TBD
$24,444
$46,084


$9,673,020


Allocation
Projected
FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y06 March 2019


Expenditures
thru Jan 2019


$29,759,285


45.4 % (Total Expenditures to Jan 31 2019)


304/376







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures


Santa Cruz HS      Current Resource          $32,217,006


Multi Project Overhead
Mod Ph 1: (water line|leaks)
Mod Ph 2: (Caf, restroom, classroom)
Mod Ph 3: (Math, Sci, Library)
Mod Ph 4: (Main building)
Gym Mod Phase 1: (paint, pads, acoust)
Gym Mod Phase 2: (entry, locker rms)
New Pool House (restrooms)
Fields
Re-Roof
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements


$1,610,850
$458,072


$4,197,640
$2,469,457
$6,900,815


$435,982
$4,422,342
$1,725,204
$1,437,464
$2,165,636


$500,000
$650,000


$155,756
$419,745
$142,715


N/A
N/A


$378,991
$11,475


$330
$1,437,464
$2,211,724


N/A
N/A


$4,778,022Allocated so far $26,973,462


$224,770
$116,698
$283,857


$69,580
$311,102
$246,504
$922,210
$359,764


N/A
$1,164,932


$227,368
$410,526


$4,337,311


Allocation
Projected
FY 18|19 


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y06 March 2019


Expenditures
To Jan 31 2019


14.8 %(Total Expenditures to Jan 31 2019)


305/376







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures


Soquel High School       Current Resource   $34,908,502


Multi Project Overhead
Site Infrastructure (safety, elec, drainage)
New Concession Building & Ramp
Tennis Courts
Mod Phase 1: Reverse TI
Mod Phase 2: Wing 100
Mod Phase 3: Wing 200
Mod Phase 4: Wing 300
Site Work
Pool 
Fields
Card Access Security System
Interim Housing
Data Infrastructure


$1,703,567
$3,256,101
$1,842,438


$221,362
$366,000


$6,097,267
$5,878,868
$3,000,000


$610,000
$7,502,689
$1,527,272


$310,000
TBD


$700,000


$137,159
$549,096
$426,790
$210,066
$706,849
$205,025


$84,875
$400,000


N/A
$5,382,527
$1,527,272


$22,232
$60,420


N/A


$9,651,890$33,015,564Allocated so far


$335,128
$3,820,984
$1,422,909


$130,942
$344,881


$3,878,262
$407,740


N/A
$2,831,911


N/A
$24,845


TBD
$100,000


$13,297,602


Allocation


Projected
FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y06 March 2019


Expenditures
To Jan 31 2019


27.6%(Total Expenditures to Jan 31 2019)


306/376







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


Bayview ES              Current Resource       $13,961,998


Multi-Project Overhead
Re-Roofing
New Kinder & Sitework
New Classroom Building & Sitework
Mod Phase 1 
Mod Phase 2
Portable Demolition & Site Work
Utility Infrastructure
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements
Fire Line


$698,100
$925,529


$1,587,408
$3,574,686
$2,684,000
$2,684,000


$732,000
TBD


$190,000
$300,000
$488,000


$36,464
$925,529


$62,635
$119,425


$85,960
N/A


$56,739
$10,984
$72,115


N/A
N/A


$1,370,398$13,863,723


$137,331
N/A


$163,574
$2,023,986


$308,000
$244,444


$58,667
TBD


$9,617
$24,044


$288,667


$3,258,330


Allocation
Projected
FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y06 March 2019


Expenditures
To Jan 31 2019


9.8% (Total Expenditures to Jan 31 2019)


307/376







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


DeLaveaga ES              Current Resource   $14,861,844


Multi-Project Overhead
New Shade Structure & Parking Lot
New Classrooms
Re-Roofing
Mod Phase 1 (Classrooms)
Mod Phase 2 (Special spaces)
Portable Demolition & Site Work
Utility Infrastructure
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements


$743,092
$1,600,008
$3,637,192


$335,439
$3,599,000
$3,599,000


$854,000
TBD


$125,000
$330,000


$35,259
$1,421,028


$195,865
N/A


$112,535
N/A


$56,507
$6,098


$72,115
N/A


$1,899,407


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


$14,822,731Allocated so far


$146,182
$912,791


$1,920,039
$36,293


$385,000
$342,222


$68,444
TBD


$10,018
$26,448


$3,847,437


Allocation
Projected
FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y06 March 2019


Expenditures
To Jan 31 2019


12.8% (Total Expenditures to Jan 31 2019)


308/376







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Gault ES                         Current Resource   $9,226,851 to $9,767,066 (Revised)


Multi Project Overhead
Roofing
New Classroom Building
Mod Phase 1 Water intrusion
Mod Phase 2 Main Building (Carpet)
Mod Phase 3 : Paint
Utility Infrastructure
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements
Remove Portables, Field


$550,771
$900,354


$6,114,898
$56,022


$100,000
$200,000


$110,000
$225,000
$982,682


$105,061
$752,724


$16,050
$3,219
$6,780


$765
$12,818
$85,208


N/A
N/A


$982,626


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


$9,239,727Allocated so far


$109,332
$275,173
$339,733


$52,803
$213,786
$272,131


$80,000
$225,000


$1,567,958


Allocation
Projected
FY 18|19 


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y06 March 2019


Expenditures
To Jan 31 2019


8.8% (Total Expenditures to Jan 31 2018)


309/376







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Natural Bridges      Current Resource         $5,421,709


Multi-Project Overhead
Campus Re-Roofing
Int Gym Mod and Parking Lot
Ext Gym Repairs and Restroom Addition
Repainting and Repairs
Utility Infrastructure
Artificial Field


$272,682
$1,438,439


$533,626
$586,243
$203,740


TBD
$2,440,000


$12,168
$1,448,283


$630,259
$86,461


$193,476
$9,336


N/A


$2,379,983


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


Allocated so far $5,474,730


$53,642
$44,652


$307,637
$526,588


$93,997
TBD


$50,000


$1,076,516


Allocation


Projected
FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y06 March 2019


Expenditures
To Jan 31 2019


43.9% (Total Expenditures to Jan 31 2019)


310/376







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Westlake ES                 Current Resource     $13,921,491


Multi-Project Overhead
Re-roof
New Upper Classroom
Modernize Phase 1 Upper
Modernize Phase 2 Lower
Site Improvements
Utility Infrastructure
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements
Parking Lot


$696,075
$1,000,000
$6,114,898
$1,288,673
$1,381,429


$466,054
TBD


$120,000
$335,000
$500,000


$101,231
N/A


$26,775
$10,450


N/A
$23,494


$2,838
$14,383


N/A
$1,725


$179,171


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


$11,902,129Allocated so far


$136,933
$272,131
$268,948


$50,000
$50,000
$88,092


TBD
$120,000
$335,000
$500,000


$1,821,104


Allocation


Projected
FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y06 March 2019


Expenditures
To Jan 31 2019


1.3% (Total Expenditures to Jan 31 2019)


311/376







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Branciforte Small Schools   Current Resource     $10,345,332


Multi-Project Overhead
Relocate Playground and Lunch Shelter
Portable replacement
Alternative Family Ed Campus
Mod Phase 1 
Mod Phase 2
Portable Demolition and Site Work
Utility Infrastructure
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements


$521,068
$740,215


$3,452,475
$2,484,569
$1,159,000


$902,000
$671,000


TBD
$135,000
$250,000


$38,614
$513,249
$153,517


$48,555
$339,574


N/A
$53,309
$10,366
$72,115


N/A


$1,229,200


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


$10,316,127


$102,505
$499,544


$1,500,024
$192,016
$200,000
$146,667


$53,778
TBD


$6,812
$20,036


$2,721,382


Allocation


Projected
FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y06 March 2019


Expenditures
To Jan 31 2019


11.9%(Total Expenditures to Jan 31 2019)


312/376







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update


END


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y06 March 2019
313/376







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.2.3 
 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: AB 1200 Public Hearing on Collective Bargaining Agreement between 
Santa Cruz City Schools and the Greater Santa Cruz Federation of 
Teachers 


 


MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
  
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board is required by AB 1200 to make this collective bargaining agreement available to the 
public, to publicly disclose its costs and to conduct a public hearing to receive public comments 
on the agreement prior to being approved.   
 
Effective July 1, 2019, the bargaining agreement moves two Deaf and Hard of Hearing teachers to 
the Support Services work calendar, resulting in 15 additional workdays per year for these 
employees. 
  
Attached is the public notice which was posted at all District sites prior to the Board meeting.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$16,918 annually, Special Education (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


314/376







 


 


 


 


PUBLIC NOTICE 
 


AB 1200 FOR CERTIFICATED GSCFT K-12 


 
 
 
Public notice is hereby provided that the Board of Trustees of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
District reached a tentative collective bargaining agreement with the K12 Certificated 
Employee bargaining unit represented by the Greater Santa Cruz Federation of Teachers 
(GSCFT), for 2019-20 and for 2020-21.  The Board of Trustees will conduct a public hearing and 
approve the agreement with the GSCFT at a Board meeting to be held as follows: 
 


March 6, 2019 
6:30 p.m. 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education 
400 Encinal Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
Board Room 
 


 
Copies of the agreement and costs of the agreement are available at the Santa Cruz City 
Schools District Office, 133 Mission Street, Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 beginning March 1, 
2019. 
 
Comments on the cost of the agreement may be submitted to the Board of Trustees, c/o Santa 
Cruz City Schools District, in writing at the above address or may be made at the Board meeting 
at the above time and location.  


 


315/376







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.4 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: AB 1200 Public Disclosure of the 2018-2019 Collective Bargaining 
Agreement between Santa Cruz City Schools and the Greater 
Santa Cruz Federation of Teachers (GSCFT) 


 


MEETING DATE: March 6, 2019 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the AB 1200 Public Disclosure of the 2018-2019 Collective Bargaining Agreement 
between Santa Cruz City Schools and the Greater Santa Cruz Federation of Teachers (GSCFT). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board is required by AB 1200 to make this collective bargaining agreement available to the 
public, to publicly disclose its costs and to conduct a public hearing to receive public comments on 
the agreement prior to being approved.   
 
Effective July 1, 2019, the bargaining agreement moves two Deaf and Hard of Hearing teachers to 
the Support Services work calendar, resulting in 15 additional workdays per year for these 
employees. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$16,918 annually, Special Education (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


 
 


316/376







317/376







318/376







319/376







320/376







321/376







322/376







323/376







324/376







325/376







326/376







327/376







328/376







329/376







330/376







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: XL Construction Corporation Amendment 1 to the Lease-Lease 
Back Agreement, Site Lease Agreement, Sublease and General 
Conditions for the Soquel and Harbor High School Pool Projects 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve XL Construction Corporation amendment 1 to the lease-lease back agreement, site 
lease agreement, sublease and general conditions for the Soquel and Harbor High School 
swimming pool projects.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The original lease-lease back agreement was split into two increments. Construction increment 
#1 for the Soquel High School Pool was approved by the board on May 9, 2018. Construction 
increment #2 for Harbor High School includes removal of the existing pool, its equipment 
building, infrastructure and the installation of a new 33 meter pool, weight room and basketball 
courts.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$8,883,597.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 25.44% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


331/376







CSI# SCOPE OF WORK SUBCONTRACTOR


ROM CONCEPTUAL 


ESTIMATE 8/21/2018 GMP2 2/20/2019 VARIANCE


2001 Survey, Safety & Misc. Site Sandis + XL Budget 345,700 384,810 39,110


2200 Rough Grading Duran & Venables 1,272,700 1,549,545 276,845


2440 Landscape & Site Furnishings XL Budget 15,000 15,000 0


2700 Chain Link Fence AAA Fence 72,077 149,853 77,776


2800 Underground Utilities Cal Pacific 284,900 320,603 35,703


3400 Concrete Bradley Concrete 810,324 859,595 49,271


4400 Masonry Patania Masonry 116,200 120,900 4,700


5400 Miscellaneous Metals Benchmark 14,686 14,686 0


6100 Rough Carpentry Rick Slater 171,725 190,221 18,496


6300 Support & Control XL Construction 300,000 300,000 0


7100 Waterproofing XL Budget 32,500 7,500 (25,000)


7500 Roofing Alliance Roofing 87,980 143,945 55,965


7600 Flashing + Caulking XL Budget 18,735 18,735 0


8130 Doors, Frames, Hardware XL SPW 65,771 81,027 15,256


8800 Interior Glazing Signature Glass & Windows 0 21,184 21,184


9100 Misc. Finishes XL SPW 77,988 104,428 26,440


10100 Misc. Specialties & Equipment XL SPW + KSI + Corp Signs 27,445 61,961 34,516


13080 Swimming Pools Nadar 1,607,200 1,637,600 30,400


15400 Plumbing Cal Pacific Plumbing 376,250 425,550 49,300


15500 HVAC Systems Silicon Valley Mechanical 100,620 140,520 39,900


16001 Electrical Cupertino Electric 772,661 870,485 97,8240


Subtotal 6,570,462 7,418,148 847,686


PRECON 38,681 38,681 0


GENERAL CONDITIONS  333,635 343,635 10,0000


Subtotal 6,942,778 7,800,464 857,686


SDI - TRADE WORK ONLY 1.25 % 75,242 85,970 10,728


CONTRACTOR'S CONTINGENCY 5.00 % 350,901 394,322 43,421


BUILDERS RISK INSURANCE 26,888 33,521 6,633


LIABILITY INSURANCE 1.00 % 73,958 83,143 9,185


PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND 0.80 % 59,758 67,179 7,421


FEE 4.95 % 372,711 418,998 46,287


TOTAL 7,902,236 8,883,597 981,361


Swimming Pool Replacement For Harbor High School


GMP2 SUMMARY - 2-20-2019 


Page 1 of 1332/376







MEASURE  A BOND PROJECT UPDATES FOR:
HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


MARCH 6, 2019


333/376







CURRENT PROJECTS: 2017-2019


Project Phase Completion 


(est)


1 Athletic Fields Improvements Construction September 2018


2 Roof Replacement Construction Summer 2018


3 Tennis Court Renovation Construction Summer 2018


4 Student Locker Remodel Construction Fall 2018


5 Electrical Service 


Replacement


Bidding Summer 2019


6 New Swimming Pool and 


Weight Room


Design Summer 2019


HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


334/376







NEXT PROJECTS (2018-2020)


Project Phase Completion (est)


1 Upper Parking Lot 


Improvements


Design Summer 2019


2 Music/Theater/Fine Arts


Building Modernization


Preliminary Fall 2019


3 Security/Access Improvements Design TBD


4 Classroom Modernization Preliminary TBD


5 Data Infrastructure Design TBD


HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


335/376







June 6, 2018 Site Committee  Reviewed and ApprovedHARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


Project Estimated Cost


Current Projects


• Athletic Field Improvements $9.5M


• Electrical Service Replacement $350K


• New Swimming Pool & Weight Room $9.6M


• Roof Replacement $1.5M


• Student Locker Remodel $250K


• Tennis Court Renovation $225K


Current Projects Subtotal $22.4 Million


Next Projects


• Music/Theater/Fine Arts Building Modernization $3.4M


• Security/Access Improvements $300K


• Data Infrastructure Improvements $600K


• Upper Parking Lot Improvements $200K


• Classroom Modernization $2.4M


Next Projects Subtotal $5.9 Million


Multi-Project Overhead $1.5 Million


Total Estimated Allocation $29.8 Million


Total Current Resource $29.8 Million


336/376







February 2019 Site Committee Reviewed and ApprovedHARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


Project Estimated Cost


Current Projects


• Athletic Field Improvements $9.5M


• Electrical Service Replacement $350K


• New Swimming Pool & Weight Room $10.5M


• Roof Replacement $1.5M


• Student Locker Remodel $250K


• Tennis Court Renovation $225K


Current Projects Subtotal $22.4 Million


Next Projects


• Music/Theater/Fine Arts Building Modernization $3.4M


• Security/Access Improvements $300K


• Data Infrastructure Improvements $600K


• Upper Parking Lot Improvements $200K


• Classroom Modernization $1.5M


Next Projects Subtotal $5.9 Million


Multi-Project Overhead $1.5 Million


Total Estimated Allocation $29.8 Million


Total Current Resource $29.8 Million


337/376







HARBOR HIGH 


SCHOOL


PROPOSED SITE PLAN


338/376







HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


ESCALATION


6/18 – 3/19


20% Increase in Aluminum


20% increase in Steel


20 % increase in Lumber and Plywood


10% increase in Concrete


Scope changes mandated and by ongoing 


discovery


5% increase in Labor rates


General Conditions increases (due to the 


separation of projects)


Added ADA parking work
339/376







Santa Cruz City School Board of Trustees


BOND PROJECT CORE TEAM
Pat Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent Business Services


Trevor Miller, Director Maintenance Operations and Transportation
Greg Torr, Director of Fiscal Services


Chris Garcia, Construction Facilities Project Manager
Tricia Hayes,  Project Coordinator


Paul Lipscomb, Maintenance & Operations and Custodial Supervisor
Architectural Firm Advisors – Bartos, Belli, Madi Group (advise & inform Core Teams & Site Bond Committees)


SCCS Superintendent – Kris Munro


School Site Bond Committees
(Composed of Principal, Parents, Staff (& Secondary Students)


Independent 
Community Bond 


Oversight 
Committee


SCCS Bond Organizational Chart


340/376







341/376







342/376







343/376







344/376







345/376







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.6 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


AGENDA ITEM: Lease Purchase of Six School Buses 


MEETING DATE: March 6, 2019 


FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services    


THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve a five-year lease purchase agreement with Creative Bus Sales for four used 2016 24-
passenger buses and a five-year lease purchase agreement with BusWest for two new 2020 84-
passenger buses. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The District’s Transportation Department provides services for Special Needs Home to School 
students (nine routes to thirteen school sites hosting twenty programs) and for General 
Education Home to School and School Trips (one route serving Delaveaga, plus field trips and 
sports transportation).  The current workload requires a twelve bus fleet, with nine working 
buses and three working spare buses. The fleet is composed of eleven buses, with two currently 
out of service. Service for athletic and current field trips has been curtailed due to unreliable 
equipment. 83% of the buses are over 14 years old, and 58% are over 20 years old.  The age of 
the buses makes electrical problems more likely, and it is difficult to find parts for vehicles over 
10 years old. 
 


The Board is asked to approve two lease purchase agreements, one with Creative Bus Sales for 
four 2016 24-passenger buses with less than 30,000 miles on them, and one with BusWest for 
two new 84-passenger buses.  The term of each agreement is five years.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The total cost of the four smaller buses is $248,520,00.  The two larger buses cost a total of 
$335,444.72.  The lease purchase agreements are for five years each, and will be paid from the 
unrestricted lease revenue. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


Prepared by Emil F. Frates, Transportation Supervisor  


346/376







347/376







348/376







349/376







350/376







351/376







352/376







353/376







354/376







355/376







356/376







   AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution #18-18-19 Non-Reelection of Certain Probationary 


Certificated Employees 
 
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution #18-18-19, Non-Reelection of Certain Probationary Certificated Employees. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Education Code 44929.21, on or before March 15th of a probationary certificated 
employee’s second complete consecutive school year of service, the Superintendent or 
designee must notify the employee of the Board’s decision to not re-elect the employee for the 
2019-2020 school year. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
 
 
 


357/376







   AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 


RESOLUTION #18-18-19 
 


NON-REELECTION OF CERTAIN PROBATIONARY CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEES 
 


 
WHEREAS, the Superintendent has recommended giving notice to the probationary certificated 
employees listed below, pursuant to Education Code section 44929.21, subdivision (b), that the 
employee will not be re-elected for the 2019-2020 school year: 
 


1. Employee #3692 
2. Employee #3714 
3. Employee #3726 
4. Employee #3741 
5. Employee #4073 


 
WHEREAS, the Governing Board believes that it is in the best interest of the District to not re-
elect the probationary certificated employees listed above, as recommended by the 
Superintendent; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Superintendent is directed, pursuant to Education Code 
section 44929.21 and all other applicable law, to send appropriate notices to the employees 
listed above, whose services shall be terminated by virtue of this action.  Nothing herein shall 
be deemed to confer any status or rights upon these certificated employees in addition to 
those specifically granted to the employees by statute. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Santa Cruz City Schools District Board of Education this 6th day of 
March, 2019, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:________    NOES:________    ABSTENTIONS:________   ABSENT:________ 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education 


358/376







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.2 
  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution #23-18-19 Reduction of K-12 Particular Kinds of 


Services 
 
MEETING DATE:  March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution #23-18-19, Reduction of K-12 Particular Kinds of Services. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Education Code Section 44949 and 44955, the Board of Education is advised to 
reduce or discontinue K-12 particular kinds of service for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Reducing or discontinuing the services itemized in Exhibit A will help the district remain fiscally 
sound. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 


 
RESOLUTION #23-18-19 


359/376







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.2 
  


 
REDUCTION OF K-12 PARTICULAR KINDS OF SERVICE 


 
 


WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City Schools District has determined that it 
shall be necessary to reduce or discontinue the particular kinds of services of the District as 
itemized in Exhibit “A” at the end of the current school year; and 
 
WHEREAS, it shall be necessary to terminate at the end of the 2018-2019 school year the 
employment of certain certificated employees of the District as a result of this reduction or 
discontinuance in particular kinds of service; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Superintendent or designee is directed to send 
appropriate notices to all employees whose services may be terminated by virtue of this action.  
Nothing herein shall be deemed to confer any status or rights upon temporary or categorically 
funded project certificated employees in addition to those specifically granted to them by 
statute. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City Schools District this 6th 
day of March, 2019. 
 
AYES:_________      NOES:_________    ABSTENTIONS:_________ ABSENT:_________ 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx 
Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education 
 
 


 
 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 


RESOLUTION #23-18-19 


360/376







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.2 
  


 
EXHIBIT “A” 


 
 
TO: Governing Board 
 
FROM: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
DATE: March 6, 2019 
 
RE: Recommended Reduction in 2019-2020 Program Service 


 
 
The Superintendent recommends that the Governing Board adopt a resolution to reduce the 
programs and services in K-12 for 2019-2020 as follows: 
 
Service FTE  
Biology .40  
CTE – Construction .20 
Drama .30 
Foundational Level – General Science 1.0 
Math .40 
Physical Education    .20 
Sixth Grade Core    .40 
Social Studies     1.0 
Spanish     .20 
 
Total      4.1 
 


361/376







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.3 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Opening of Sunshine Period for Santa Cruz Council of Classified 
Employees to the Santa Cruz City Schools for the 2018-19 School 
Year 


 
DATE:    March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept the Santa Cruz City Council of Classified Employees 2018-19 contract proposals to Santa 
Cruz City Schools for sunshining. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Santa Cruz City Council of Classified Employees contract proposals are being submitted for 
sunshining at the March 6, 2019 Board Meeting. This in accordance with the Employees 
Relations Act for public notice of contract proposals before official negotiations may begin. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Undetermined at this time 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


362/376







 


Santa Cruz Council of Classified Employees 


 


February 1, 2019 


 


To:  Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 


From: Jeanie Brown, Chief Negotiator, SCCCE 


 


Re:  Sunshine – 2018/2019 Contract  


 


Article II – Recognition 


Article IV – Rights of the Exclusive Representative 


Article V – Organization and Security  


Article VI – Hours and Overtime 


Article VIII - Holidays 


Article IX – Wages 


Article XI – Grievance Procedure 


Article XV – Leave of Absence  


 


363/376







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.4 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Opening of Sunshine Period for Santa Cruz City Schools to the 


Santa Cruz Council of Classified Employees for the 2018-19 School 
Year 


 
DATE:    March 6, 2019 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Santa Cruz City Schools’, 2018-19 contract proposals to Santa Cruz Council of 
Classified Employees for sunshining. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Santa Cruz City Schools’ contract proposals are being submitted for sunshining at the 
March 6, 2019 Board Meeting.  This in accordance with the Employees Relations Act for public 
notice of contract proposals before official negotiations may begin.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Undetermined at this time. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


364/376







Board of Trustees 


Sheila Coonerty, Deedee Perez-Granados, Cynthia Ranii, Jeremy Shonick, Patricia Threet, Deborah Tracy-Proulx, Claudia Vestal 


 


 


 


 


 


 


133 Mission Street, Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95060  |  (831) 429-3410  |  www.sccs.net  


   Kris Munro                  Molly Parks       Patrick K. Gaffney       Dorothy Coito 


Superintendent of           Assistant Superintendent    Assistant Superintendent               Assistant Superintendent 


     Schools               Human Resources         Business Services    Educational Services 


     


 


 


Sunshine Articles 


To SCCCE from SCCS 


 


March 6, 2019 


 


 


Article IV Rights of the Exclusive Representation 


 


Article V Organization and Security 


 


Article VI Hours and Overtime 


 


Article VIII Holidays 


 


Article IX Wages 


 


Article X Health and Welfare Benefits 


 


Article XII Safety Condition 


 


Article XIII Evaluation Procedures 


 


Article XVI Transfers 


 


Article XVII Professional Growth Policy 


 


Article XVIII Layoff 


 


Article XXIII Employee Materials 


 


Article XXIV Summer School Hiring Process/Procedure 


 


Appendix G Sick Leave Donation Form 


 


 


 


 


365/376







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


  


  
AGENDA ITEM:                    Public Hearing Regarding State Board of Education Waiver 
  
MEETING DATE:                   March 6, 2019 


  
FROM:                                  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
  
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Conduct the public hearing to consider whether to submit a waiver to the State Board of 
Education allowing for implementation of by-trustee area elections without the need to hold an 
election on the matter pursuant to Education Code section 5020.  
  
BACKGROUND: 
On January 16, 2019, the Board adopted Resolution Number 14-18-19, declaring its intent to 
transition from at-large elections, where each trustee is elected by all voters within the District, 
to by-trustee area elections, where each trustee must reside within a designated trustee-area 
boundary, and is elected only by the voters in that trustee-area. A school district seeking to 
transition to a by-trustee area election system must submit an application to the local County 
Committee on School District Reorganization (“County Committee”) for approval. If the County 
Committee approves the school district’s application, California Education Code section 5020 
would require an election to approve the move to by-trustee area elections. To avoid the costs 
associated with an election and to ensure timely implementation, the Board is considering 
seeking a waiver from the State Board of Education of this election requirement, as well as 
certain other Education Code sections related to the election requirement. If the waiver is 
granted by the State Board of Education, no election to approve the change to by-trustee area 
elections will take place, and the County Committee’s decision on the District’s application will 
be final. This election requirement provided in Education Code section 5020 is separate and 
distinct from any election that may be required to amend the City Charter. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code sections 5019 and 33050, the Board invites community input on 
the proposed waiver request.  Any member of the public or representatives of the school 
district will be provided the opportunity to offer oral or written comments on the matter. The 
Board will have a series of public hearings regarding the formation of by-trustee areas prior to 
any final action.  
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 


  
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 


Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


366/376







 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 


NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Santa Cruz City Schools (“District”) Board of Education (“Board”) 


will hold a public hearing on:  


Wednesday, March 6, 2019 


to consider whether to submit a waiver to the State Board of Education allowing for implementation 


of by-trustee area elections without the need to hold an election on the matter pursuant to 


Education Code section 5020. The public hearing will be held at the following location: 


400 Encinal St. Santa Cruz, Board Room at Santa Cruz County Office of Education 


SCCS Board of Trustees Meeting – Open Session Begins at 6:30pm 


At its Wednesday, January 16, 2019 meeting, the Board adopted Resolution Number 14-18-19, 
declaring its intent to transition from at-large elections, where each trustee is elected by all voters 
within the District, to by-trustee area elections, where each trustee must reside within a designated 
trustee-area boundary, and is elected only by the voters in that trustee-area.  A school district seeking 
to transition to a by-trustee area election system must submit an application to the local County 
Committee on School District Reorganization (“County Committee”) for approval.   If the County 
Committee approves the school district’s application, California Education Code section 5020 would 
require an election to approve the move to by-trustee area elections.  To avoid the costs associated 
with an election and to ensure timely implementation, the Board is considering seeking a waiver from 
the State Board of Education of this election requirement, as well as certain other Education Code 
sections related to the election requirement. If the waiver is granted by the State Board of Education, 
no election to approve the change to by-trustee area elections will take place, and the County 
Committee’s decision on the District’s application will be final.  (Note that this election requirement 
provided in Education Code section 5020 is separate and distinct from any election that may be required 
to amend the City Charter.) 
 
Pursuant to Education Code sections 5019 and 33050, the Board invites community input on the 
proposed waiver request.  Any member of the public or representatives of the school district will be 
provided the opportunity to offer oral or written comments on the matter. The Board will have a series 
of public hearings regarding the formation of by-trustee areas prior to any final action.  
 
Should you have any questions regarding this notice, please direct them to Superintendent Kris Munro 
at the District office (kmunro@sccs.net or [831] 429-3410 ext. 220).       
 
 
Dated:  February 25, 2019   


 


367/376







 


AVISO DE AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA 
 


SE ENTREGA EL AVISO de que la Mesa Directiva ("Mesa Directiva") las Escuelas de la Ciudad de Santa 


Cruz ("Distrito") realizará una audiencia pública el: 


Miércoles 6 de marzo de 2019 


para considerar si presentar una exención a la Junta de Educación del Estado que permita la 


implementación de las elecciones del área del fideicomisario sin la necesidad de realizar una elección 


sobre el tema conforme a la sección 5020 del Código de Educación. La audiencia pública se llevará a 


cabo en la siguiente ubicación: 


400 Encinal St. Santa Cruz, Sala de juntas en la oficina de educación del condado  


Junta del Consejo de Administración de SCCS - Sesión abierta empieza a las 6:30pm 


En su reunión del miércoles 16 de enero de 2019, la Mesa Directiva adoptó la Resolución Número 14-
18-19, declarando su intención de hacer la transición de las elecciones generales, donde cada 
fideicomisario es elegido por todos los votantes dentro del Distrito, para las elecciones del área del 
fideicomisario, donde cada fideicomisario debe residir dentro de un límite designado de área de 
fideicomisario, y es elegido solo por los votantes en esa área de fideicomiso. Un distrito escolar que 
busca la transición a un sistema de elección del área del fideicomisario debe presentar una solicitud al 
Comité del Condado local sobre Reorganización del Distrito Escolar ("Comité del Condado") para su 
aprobación. Si el Comité del Condado aprueba la solicitud del distrito escolar, la sección 5020 del 
Código de Educación de California requeriría una elección para aprobar el cambio a las elecciones del 
área del fideicomisario. Para evitar los costos asociados con una elección y asegurar la implementación 
oportuna, la Mesa Directiva está considerando solicitar una exención de la Junta de Educación del 
Estado de este requisito de elección, así como algunas otras secciones del Código de Educación 
relacionadas con el requisito de elección. Si la Junta de Educación del Estado otorga la exención, no se 
realizará ninguna elección para aprobar el cambio a las elecciones del área del fideicomisario, y la 
decisión del Comité del Condado sobre la solicitud del Distrito será definitiva. (Tenga en cuenta que 
este requisito de elección provisto en la sección 5020 del Código de Educación es separado y distinto 
de cualquier elección que se pueda requerir para enmendar el Estatuto de la Ciudad). 
 
De conformidad con las secciones 5019 y 33050 del Código de Educación, la Mesa Directiva invita a 
que la comunidad formule parte de la solicitud de exención propuesta. Cualquier miembro del público 
o representantes del distrito escolar tendrá la oportunidad de ofrecer comentarios orales o escritos 
sobre el tema. La Mesa Directica tendrá una serie de audiencias públicas sobre la formación de áreas 
de fideicomisarios antes de cualquier acción final. 
Si tiene alguna pregunta con respecto a este aviso, comuníquese con la Superintendente Kris Munro 
en la oficina del Distrito (kmunro@sccs.net o [831] 429-3410 ext. 220).       
 
 
Fecha:  25 de febrero de 2019   368/376







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.2.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


  


  
AGENDA ITEM:                    Resolution 24-18-19: Consideration and Potential Adoption for 


Establishing Criteria for Developing Trustee Area Boundaries 
  
MEETING DATE:                   March 6, 2019 


  
FROM:                                  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt Resolution 24-18-19 to authorize the Superintendent to seek a waiver from the State 
Board of Education.  
  
BACKGROUND: 
On January 16, 2019, the Board adopted Resolution Number 14-18-19, declaring its intent to 
transition from at-large elections, where each trustee is elected by all voters within the District, 
to by-trustee area elections, where each trustee must reside within a designated trustee-area 
boundary, and is elected only by the voters in that trustee-area.   


This resolution will authorize the State Board of Education to waive this voter approval 
requirement, which could reduce the cost and expedite the timeline for implementation of the 
by-trustee area elections. An election to approve the change in voting methods will result in 
significant cost to the District. 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
Approximately $200,000 in savings to not hold an election, LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
  
  
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
  
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget nd efficient and effective management. 


Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 


369/376







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Resolution # 24-18-19 


 


RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUPERINTENDENT TO 


SEEK A WAIVER FROM THE STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION 


 


 WHEREAS, the Board of Education (“Board”) of Santa Cruz City Schools (“District”) is 


elected under an “at-large” election system where trustees are elected by voters of the entire 


District; and 


  


WHEREAS, at its Wednesday, January 16, 2019 meeting, the Board adopted Resolution 


Number 14-18-19, declaring its intent to transition from at-large elections to by-trustee area 


elections, where each trustee must reside within a designated trustee-area boundary, and is elected 


only by the voters in that trustee-area;  


 


WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code section 10010, subdivision (a)(1), the Board will 


hold a minimum of two public hearings prior to developing proposed by-trustee area boundary 


maps;  


 


WHEREAS, the Board will hold a minimum of two additional public hearings to seek 


public input on the proposed by-trustee area maps developed with assistance from a demographer 


(Elec. Code, § 10010, subd. (a)(2));  


 


WHEREAS, the Board will hold an additional public hearing before adopting a by-trustee 


area map and submitting it to the Santa Cruz County Committee on School District Organization 


(“County Committee”) for consideration;   


 


 WHEREAS, Education Code sections 5019 and 5030 authorize the County Committee, 


upon application of a school district’s governing board, to change the method of election in a 


school district under its jurisdiction;  


 


 WHEREAS, if the County Committee approves this request to change the method of 


electing board members, Education Code section 5020 requires the County Committee’s resolution 


of approval to be submitted to the electorate for its approval; 


 


 WHEREAS, an election to approve the change in voting methods will result in a cost to 


the District, and Education Code sections 33050-33053 authorize the State Board of Education to 


waive this voter approval requirement, which could reduce the cost and expedite the timeline for 


implementation of the by-trustee area elections; 


 


 WHEREAS, in light of the above, the Board wishes to request that the State Board of 


Education waive the election requirement set forth in the Education Code;  


 


 WHEREAS, on March 6, 2019, the Board held a public hearing on the proposed waiver 


application to solicit input from the public and District stakeholders;   


 


 WHEREAS, the District properly posted a timely notice of the aforementioned public 


hearing;   


 


370/376







 WHEREAS, the District complied with the notice and consulting requirements set forth in 


Education Code sections 33050 et seq. 


 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Education of Santa Cruz City 


Schools hereby resolves as follows: 


 


 1. The Board hereby authorizes the Superintendent and her designee(s) to seek a full 


waiver of Education Code section 5020, and partial waivers of Education Code sections 5019, 


5021, and 5030 as set forth in Exhibit A, or as otherwise required by the State Board of Education, 


to effectuate the District’s goal of moving to a by-trustee area election system. 


 


 2. The District Superintendent/designee are hereby authorized and directed to take any 


other actions necessary to effectuate the purposes of this resolution. 


  


PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Education of SANTA CRUZ CITY 


SCHOOLS, at a regular meeting of the Board of Education held March 6, 2019, by the following 


vote: 


 


AYES:  _____ 


NOES:  _____ 


ABSTAIN: _____ 


ABSENT: _____ 


 


 


I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly and regularly introduced, passed, 


and adopted by the members of the Board of Education of Santa Cruz City Schools, at a public 


meeting of said Board held on March 6, 2019. 


 


 


 


 


________________________                                    ________________________     


President, Board of Education    Clerk, Board of Education 


   


 


 


 


 


  


371/376







California Education Code Sections Proposed to be Waived 


Request to waive California Education Code Section 5020, and portions of sections 5019, 5021,  


and 5030, that require a districtwide election. Language proposed to be waived is bracketed and  


in italics below: 


§ 5019. Trustee areas and size of school district governing boards; powers of county 


committee; proposal and hearing 


(a) Except in a school district governed by a board of education provided for in the charter of a 


city or city and county, in any school district or community college district, the county 


committee on school district organization may establish trustee areas, rearrange the boundaries 


of trustee areas, abolish trustee areas, and increase to seven or decrease to five the number of 


members of the governing board, or adopt one of the alternative methods of electing governing 


board members specified in Section 5030. 


(b) The county committee on school district organization may establish or abolish a common 


governing board for a high school district and an elementary school district within the boundaries 


of the high school district. The resolution of the county committee on school district organization 


approving the establishment or abolition of a common governing board shall be presented to the 


electors of the school districts as specified in Section 5020. 


(c) (1) A proposal to make the changes described in subdivision (a) or (b) may be initiated by the 


county committee on school district organization or made to the county committee on school district 


organization either by a petition signed by 5 percent or 50, whichever is less, of the qualified 


registered voters residing in a district in which there are 2,500 or fewer qualified registered voters, by 


3 percent or 100, whichever is less, of the qualified registered voters residing in a district in which 


there are 2,501 to 10,000 qualified registered voters, by 1 percent or 250, whichever is less, of the 


qualified registered voters residing in a district in which there are 10,001 to 50,000 qualified 


registered voters, by 500 or more of the qualified registered voters residing in a district in which there 


are 50,001 to 100,000 qualified registered voters, by 750 or more of the qualified registered voters 


residing in a district in which there are 100,001 to 250,000 qualified registered voters, or by 1,000 or 


more of the qualified registered voters residing in a district in which there are 250,001 or more 


qualified registered voters or by resolution of the governing board of the district. For this purpose, the 


necessary signatures for a petition shall be obtained within a period of 180 days before the submission 


of the petition to the county committee on school district organization and the number of qualified 


registered voters in the district shall be determined pursuant to the most recent report submitted by 


the county elections official to the Secretary of State under Section 2187 of the Elections Code. 


(2) When a proposal is made pursuant to paragraph (1), the county committee on school district 


organization shall call and conduct at least one hearing in the district on the matter. At the 


conclusion of the hearing, the county committee on school district organization shall approve or 


disapprove the proposal. 


 


372/376







(d) If the county committee on school district organization approves pursuant to subdivision (a) [the 


rearrangement of] the boundaries of trustee areas for a particular district, then the [rearrangement 


of the] trustee areas shall be effectuated for the next district election occurring at least 120 days after 


[its] approval [, unless at least 5 percent of the registered voters of the district sign a petition 


requesting an election on the proposed rearrangement of trustee area boundaries. The petition for 


an election shall be submitted to the county elections official within 60 days of the proposal's 


adoption by the county committee on school district organization. If the qualified registered voters 


approve pursuant to subdivision (b) or (c) the rearrangement of the boundaries to the trustee areas 


for a particular district, the rearrangement of the trustee areas shall be effective for the next district 


election occurring at least 120 days after its approval by the voters]. 


[§ 5020. Presentation of proposal to electors 


(a) The resolution of the county committee approving a proposal to establish or abolish trustee 


areas, to adopt one of the alternative methods of electing governing board members specified in 


Section 5030, or to increase or decrease the number of members of the governing board shall 


constitute an order of election, and the proposal shall be presented to the electors of the district 


not later than the next succeeding election for members of the governing board. 


(b) If a petition requesting an election on a proposal to rearrange trustee area boundaries is filed, 


containing at least 5 percent of the signatures of the district's registered voters as determined by 


the elections official, the proposal shall be presented to the electors of the district, at the next 


succeeding election for the members of the governing board, at the next succeeding statewide 


primary or general election, or at the next succeeding regularly scheduled election at which the 


electors of the district are otherwise entitled to vote, provided that there is sufficient time to place 


the issue on the ballot 


(c) If a petition requesting an election on a proposal to establish or abolish trustee areas, to increase 


or decrease the number of members of the board, or to adopt one of the alternative methods of 


electing governing board members specified in Section 5030 is filed, containing at least 10 percent 


of the signatures of the district's registered voters as determined by the elections official, the 


proposal shall be presented to the electors of the district, at the next succeeding election for the 


members of the governing board, at the next succeeding statewide primary or general election, or 


at the next succeeding regularly scheduled election at which the electors of the district are otherwise 


entitled to vote, provided that there is sufficient time to place the issue on the ballot. Before the 


proposal is presented to the electors, the county committee on school district organization may call 


and conduct one or more public hearings on the proposal. 


 


(d) The resolution of the county committee approving a proposal to establish or abolish a common 


governing board for a high school and an elementary school district within the boundaries of the 


high school district shall constitute an order of election. The proposal shall be presented to the 


electors of the district at the next succeeding statewide primary or general election, or at the next 


succeeding regularly scheduled election at which the electors of the district are otherwise entitled to 


vote, provided that there is sufficient time to place the issue on the ballot.


 


373/376







 


(e) For each proposal there shall be a separate proposition on the ballot. The ballot shall contain 
the following words: 


"For the establishment (or abolition or rearrangement) of trustee areas in  ____  (insert name) 


School District --Yes" and "For the establishment (or abolition or rearrangement) of trustee areas 


in ____ (insert name) School District--No." 


"For increasing the number of members of the governing board of ______ (insert name) School 


District from five to seven--Yes" and "For increasing the number of members of the governing 


board of ____ (insert name) School District from five to seven--No." 


"For decreasing the number of members of the governing board of ______ (insert name) School 


District from seven to five--Yes" and "For decreasing the number of members of the governing 


board of ____ (insert name) School District from seven to five--No." 


"For the election of each member of the governing board of the __ (insert name) School District 


by the registered voters of the entire _ (insert name) School District--Yes" and "For the election 


of each member of the governing board of the __ (insert name) School District by the registered 


voters of the entire ___  (insert name) School District--No." 


"For the election of one member of the governing board of the __ (insert name) School District 


residing in each trustee area elected by the registered voters in that trustee area--Yes" and "For 


the election of one member of the governing board of the  ______  (insert name) School District  


residing in each trustee area elected by the registered voters in that trustee area--No." 


"For the election of one member, or more than one member for one or more trustee areas, of the 


governing board of the __ (insert name) School District residing in each trustee area elected by 


the registered voters of the entire ___  (insert name) School District--Yes" and "For the election 


of one member, or more than one member for one or more trustee areas, of the governing board 


of the _____ (insert name) School District residing in each trustee area elected by the registered 


voters of the entire ___ (insert name) School District--No." 


"For the establishment (or abolition) of a common governing board in the  ____  (insert name) 


School District and the ___ (insert name) School District--Yes" and "For the establishment (or 


abolition) of a common governing board in the ____ (insert name) School District and the ____   
(insert name) School District--No." 


374/376







 


 


If more than one proposal appears on the ballot, all must carry in order for any to become effective, 


except that a proposal to adopt one of the methods of election of board members specified in Section 


5030 which is approved by the voters shall become effective unless a proposal which is inconsistent 


with that proposal has been approved by a greater number of voters. An inconsistent proposal 


approved by a lesser number of voters than the number which have approved a proposal to adopt 


one of the methods of election of board members specified in Section 5030 shall not be effective.] 


 


§ 5021. Incumbents to serve out terms despite approval of change 


 


(a) If a proposal for the establishment of trustee areas formulated under Section[s] 5019 [and 5020] 


is approved [by a majority of the voters voting at the election], any affected incumbent board 


member shall serve out his or her term of office and succeeding board members shall be nominated 


and elected in accordance with Section 5030. In the event two or more trustee areas are established 


[at such election] which are not represented in the membership of the governing board of the school 


district, or community college district the county committee shall determine by lot the trustee area 


from which the nomination and election for the next vacancy on the governing board shall be made. 


(b) If a proposal for rearrangement of boundaries is approved by [a majority of the voters voting 


on the measure, or by] the county committee on school district organization [when no election is 


required], and if the boundary changes affect the board membership, any affected incumbent 


board member shall serve out his or her term of office and succeeding board members shall be 


nominated and elected in accordance with Section 5030. 


(c) If a proposal for abolishing trustee areas is approved [by a majority of the voters voting at the 


election], the incumbent board members shall serve out their terms of office and succeeding board 


members shall be nominated and elected at large from the district. 


§ 5030. Alternate method of election 


Except as provided in Sections 5027 and 5028, in any school district or community college district 


having trustee areas, the county committee on school district organization and the registered 


voters of a district, pursuant to Section[s] 5019 [and 5020, respectively], may at any time 


recommend one of the following alternate methods of electing governing board members: 


(a) That each member of the governing board be elected by the registered voters of the entire 


district. 


(b) That one or more members residing in each trustee area be elected by the registered voters 


of that particular trustee area. 


(c) That each governing board member be elected by the registered voters of the entire school 


district or community college district, but reside in the trustee area which he or she represents. 


The recommendation shall provide that any affected incumbent member shall serve out his or 


her term of office and that succeeding board members shall be nominated and elected in 


accordance with the method recommended by the county committee. 


Whenever trustee areas are established in a district, provision shall be made for one of the 


alternative methods of electing governing board members. 


375/376







 


[In counties with a population of less than 25,000,] the county committee on school district  


organization or the county board of education, if it has succeeded to the duties of the county 


committee, may at any time, by resolution, with respect to trustee areas established for any school 


district, other than a community college district, amend the provision required by this section 


without additional approval by the electors, to require one of the alternate methods for electing 


board members to be utilized. 


 


376/376





		Agenda 03.06.19 FINAL

		Minutes February 6, 2019 


		Personnel Actions - Certificated 


		Personnel Actions - Classified 


		Purchase Orders, Bids &amp; Quotes 


		8.1.3 PO&apos;s over $2500 list

		Warrant Register 


		8.1.4 Vendor Warrants List

		Disposition of Surplus Property 


		8.1.5 Surplus HH computer equipmt

		Board Meeting Schedule 2019-20 


		8.1.6. Board Meeting Schedule 2019-20

		Human Resources_District Office_ New Classified Job Description_ Office Assistant

		8.2.1 Attachment Office Assistant-DO.Draft

		Human Resources_Special Education_ Certificated Job Description_ Compliance Coach

		8.2.2 Attachment - SPED Compliance Coach Job Description

		New Certificated Job Description_ International Baccalaureate Coordinator

		8.2.3 Attachment - International Baccalaureate (IB) Coordinator Job Description

		Educational Services_Costanoa High School_ Overnight Field Trip

		8.2.4. MTNS2SEA 2019 Backpacking Itinerary

		Educational Services_Soquel High School_ Consultant Services Agreement – National Coalition Building Institute Equity Workshop

		8.2.5. CSA NBCI Form

		Educational Services_Soquel High School_ Overnight Field Trip

		Educational Services_Curriculum_ Consultant Services Agreement – American Council on the Teaching of Foreign Language

		8.2.7. ACTFL CSA forms

		Educational Services_ 5-Year Tech Plan 


		8.2.8. 5 Year Tech Plan Official 03.06.19

		Business Services_ Consultant Services Agreement – Sherrie Lust

		8.2.9 CSA Sherrie Lust

		Business Services_Soquel High School_ Mobile Home Security Agreement

		8.2.10 Mobilehome lease &amp; Maint Security Agrmt SHS

		8.2.10 Mobilehome Lease &amp; Maint Security Agrmt SHS Exhibit A

		Business Services_ School Services of California Proposal for Budget Review

		CRW Industries, Inc._ Change Order #1_ Natural Bridges Modernization &amp; Repairs - Lighting Retrofit

		8.3.1. CRW Change Order 1 Natural Bridges Modernization &amp; Repairs

		Montano Plumbing_ Proposal and Contract_ Mission Hill Utility Infrastructure

		8.3.2. Montano Plumbing Contract Underground Fire Svs Replacement MHMS Utility Infrastructure(PE)

		Swinerton_ Lease-Lease Back Agreement Amendment_ Soquel High School Modernization Phase 1

		8.3.3. Swinerton LLB Soquel High Modernizaton Phase 1(PE)

		XL Construction_ Proposal and Contract_ Harbor High School Weight Room Abatement

		8.3.4. XL Construction Contract HH Weight Room Abatement(PE)

		Staff Report_ Local Control Accountability Plan Foster Youth Update

		8.5.1.1. LCAP Foster Youth presentation 3.6.19

		8.5.2.1 Collated 2018-19 2nd Interim Report

		8.5.2.1 2018-2019 2nd Interim presentation Final

		8.5.2.1 2018-19 2nd Interim SACS Report

		Staff Report_ Bond Budget Update 


		8.5.2.2 Bond Budget Update Presentation

		PUBLIC HEARING_ AB 1200 Public Disclosure of Costs for Tentative Agreement with GSCFT for 2018-19

		8.5.2.3 Public Notice Collective Bargaining Agreement GSCFT

		New Business_ AB 1200 Public Disclosure of Costs for Tentative Agreement with GSCFT for 2018-19

		8.5.2.4 AB 1200 2018-19 GSCFT

		XL Construction_ Amendment 1_ Soquel and Harbor High School Pool Projects

		8.5.2.5 Harbor HS GMP2 Summary R0 - 2019-02-28

		8.5.2.5 Harbor Pool Presentation for award of LLB final

		8.5.2.5. XL ConstructionAmendment 1 Harbor High Swimming Pool (PE)

		Lease Purchase_ Creative Bus Sales and Bus West

		8.5.2.6 BusWest Lease Purchase of 2 large buses

		8.5.2.6 Creative Bus Sales Lease Purchase 4 small buses

		Resolution 18-18-19_ Non Re-election of Certain Probationary Employees

		Resolution 23-18-19_ Reduction of K12 Particular Kinds of Services

		New Business_ SCCCE Sunshine Articles for SCCS 2018-19

		8.5.3.3 Attachment - Sunshine to SCCS 2018-19

		New Business_ SCCS Sunshine Articles for SCCCE 2018-19

		8.5.3.4 Attachment - Sunshine to SCCCE 2018-19

		PUBLIC HEARING_ State Board of Education Waiver

		8.5.4.1. Notice of Public Hearing #3 English 03.06.19

		8.5.4.1. Notice of Public Hearing #3 03.06.19- Spanish

		New Business_ Resolution 24-18-19_ Apply for State Board of Education Waiver

		8.5.4.2. Resolution 24-18-19 SBE Waiver




